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Performance Compared to the Statement of 
Intent – Period 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012 

Glossary  
 
Auckland Council (AC) 
Auckland Transport (AT) 
Local Government Auckland Council Act (LGACA) 
Statement of Intent (SOI) 

Background 

The LGACA requires the Board to hold two public meetings each year. The first is to be held 
prior to 30 June to consider AC’s comments on the Draft Statement of Intent, the second 
must be: 

“…held after 1 July each year for the purpose of considering the organisation's 

performance under its statement of intent in the previous financial year.” (S96(2)(b)) 

Attached are reports covering the organisations performance against the service 
performance standards contained in the SOI, and a Financial Report including notes and 
accounting policies. This information will be included in the Annual Report once it has been 
audited and adopted. 

The Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer will make a presentation to the Board prior to 
allowing members of the public attending the meeting to address the Board in relation to the 
performance under the SOI.  

Recommendations 

It is recommended that the Board: 

i). Receive the report 

Service Performance 

The SOI contains 33 service performance measures. Of the 33 measures, 29 were fully 
achieved. One measure fell short of the target by 1% and one fell short of target by 2%. The 
other two not achieved related to travel times on an important freight route: Neilson Street. 

Highlights in terms of performance are the increase in public transport patronage which rose 
8.1% in total. The increase varied across modes of Bus (7.0% increase), Rail (10.5% 
increase), and Ferry (15.0% increase).  

The measures not achieved are: 

 Percentage of public transport passengers satisfied with their public transport service, 

where the target was 87% and actual was 85%. This is regarded as being substantially 
achieved and within the limits of measuring accuracy. 

 

 Percentage of residents satisfied with the quality of footpaths in their local area, where 

the target was 75% and actual performance was 74%. This is regarded as being 
substantially achieved.    
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 Travel times (in minutes) along strategically important freight routes during the inter-
peak (9am – 4pm). Both the travel time measures not achieved relate to Neilson Street 
which is to be upgraded in the next year. 

- From SH 20 to SH 1 via Nielson Street where the target is 16 minutes and actual 
was 18 minutes 

- From SH 1 to SH 20 via Nielson Street where the target is 13 minutes and the 
actual achieved was 14 minutes 

Financial Results 

The financial result is reported against the agreed budget with AC.   

The reported result for the year shows total comprehensive income of $65m. Other 
comprehensive income includes: a revaluation gain on property, plant and equipment of 
$194m, a reduction in deferred tax liability related to the revaluation of $3m, and a $19.5m 
unrealised loss on the valuation of hedged foreign exchange contracts.  

The operational result is a deficit before tax of $110m against a budgeted deficit of $17m, a 
variance of $93m.  However, a number of non-cash and abnormal items have impacted the 
operating result. These items are detailed below: 

 A $34m unrealised loss on the interest rate swap hedges valuation related to the 
electric trains project. This non-cash accounting adjustment is required under New 
Zealand International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS). 

 A $55m reduction in income for capital projects. This is mainly due to $80m reduced 
NZTA revenue for capital projects, partially off-set by $24m of income for vested 
assets. The reduction reflected a more realistic programme of work and the 
constrained funding available. AT and NZTA entered into a Financial Assistance 
Variance agreement to reflect a reduction in subsidy of $50m, to be made up in the 
subsequent two years. It was also agreed, that in return for this accommodation by AT, 
NZTA would approve projects for subsidy over a three year period, with the NZTA 
share begin paid in 2014 and 2015 financial years, on all approved expenditure for 
those projects. 

 A $46m grant from AC for the electric trains’ project, $42m of which has been used to 
fund KiwiRail procurement costs included in expenditure on activities 

 An $8m non-cash loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 

After adjusting for these non-cash and abnormal items, AT has operated within its agreed 
funding envelope, including meeting an $11m efficiency target from AC. The organisation 
has managed the cash flows for operational activities effectively. 

Capital spend was higher than contained within the budget by $45m. However, this included 
$95m for the electric trains and depot project. These costs were approved subsequent to the 
budget and have been funded by loans from the Crown, via AC. 

The Balance Sheet reflects a very strong fixed assets position. The working capital position 
is reasonable and reflects inter-entity balances between AC and AT to fund the capital work 
programme. Debt (with the exception of the electric trains and depot project) does not sit on 
AT’s statements. Any debt funding for Transport activities (excluding the electric trains and 
depot project) is borrowed by AC and the funding for capital work is provided to AT as equity 
funding. AT has debt of $113m at 30 June that is specific to the electric trains and depot 
project. These borrowings are paid from the Crown, via AC, to AT. AC provides security for 
AT’s borrowings. 

  



Agenda Item 12(i)   

 

 

Attachments 

Attachment 1 – Statement of Service Performance 

Attachment 2 – Draft Unaudited Financial Statements and Accounting Policies 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
WRITTEN and 
RECOMMENDED by 
 
 

 
Dave Foster 
Chief Financial Officer 
 

 

 

 
APPROVED FOR 
SUBMISSION by 
 

 
David Warburton 
Chief Executive  
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PerforMance Measures  
Maintain anD Make best  
use of tHe existing netWorks

Priority  
FocuS 
one

2012 Target: 66,725,000 passengers
2012 Actual: 71,087,755 passengers
2011 Actual: 65,763,655 passengers

total auckland public transport patronage was 71,087,755 
passengers for the 12 months to 30 June 2012,  an increase of  
5,324,100 or +8.1% compared to the 12 months to 30 June 2011.  
this is the first time auckland’s public transport patronage has 
exceeded 70 million passengers since the 1950s.

patronage per mode: Bus – 54,736,260 passengers (77.0%); rail – 
10,904,160 passengers (15.3%); ferry – 5,447,335 passengers (7.7%).

note: the 2011 actual result is for the full year to 30 June 2011 and therefore includes four months 
previously reported in arta.

71.1m
target exceeDeD+

passenGeRs

target

31.5
million

35.9
million

40.3
million

44.7
million

49.1
million

53.5
million

57.9
million

62.3
million

66.7
million

71.1
million

01 totAl Public trAnSPort PAtronAge –  
AnnuAl boArdingS For buS, rAil And Ferry

 
02 rAPid trAnSit buSwAy AnnuAl boArdingS

2012 Target: 2,160,000 passengers
2012 Actual: 2,279,860 passengers
2011 Actual: 2,056,890 passengers

northern express patronage totalled 2,279,860 passengers for 
the 12 months to 30 June 2012, an increase of 222,970 or +10.8% 
compared to the 12 months to 30 June 2011. the northern Busway, 
along with the the rail network, forms the rapid transit network 
(rtn). the northern Busway is new Zealand’s first purpose-built  
road dedicated to buses.

note: the 2011 actual result is for the full year to 30 June 2011 and therefore includes four months 
previously reported in arta.

2.3m
target exceeDeD+

passenGeRs

target

1.4 
million

1.5 
million

1.6 
million

1.7 
million

1.8 
million

1.9 
million

2.0 
million

2.1 
million

2.2
 million

2.3 
million

100%

100%

Terallen1
Text Box
STATEMENT OF SERVICE PERFORMANCE 

Terallen1
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 1 
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03 rAPid trAnSit rAil AnnuAl boArdingS

2012 Target: 10,090,000 passengers
2012 Actual: 10,904,160 passengers
2011 Actual: 9,864,604 passengers 

rapid transit rail annual boardings totalled 10,904,160 passengers for 
the 12 months to 30 June 2012, an increase of 1,039,556 or +10.5% 
compared to the 12 months to 30 June 2011. Western line rail 
patronage totalled 4,092,234 passengers, an increase of 578,743 or 
+16.5%. southern and eastern line rail patronage totalled 6,811,926  
an increase of 460,791 or +7.3%. 

note: the 2011 actual result is for the full year to 30 June 2011 and therefore includes four months 
previously reported in arta.

10.9m
target exceeDeD+

passenGeRs

target

2012 Target: 49,700,000 passengers
2012 Actual: 52,456,400 passengers
2011 Actual: 49,106,444 passengers

Bus services other than the northern express form the majority 
of services on the Quality transit network and local connector 
network, including dedicated school bus services. patronage totalled  
52,456,400 passengers for the 12 months to 30 June 2012, an increase 
of 3,349,956 or +6.8%. Bus patronage (excluding northern express) 
by sector: north sector – 10,666,558 passengers, an increase of 
309,637 or +3.0%; West sector – 4,951,054 passengers, an increase of 
93,995 or +1.9%; south sector – 10,719,191 passengers, an increase 
of 347,086 or +3.3%; isthmus sector – 26,119,597 passengers, an 
increase of 2,599,238 or +11.1%.

note: the 2011 actual result is for the full year to 30 June 2011 and therefore include four months 
previously reported in arta.

52.5m
target exceeDeD+

passenGeRs

target

3.7 
million

4.5
million

5.3
 million

6.1 
million

6.9 
million

7.7 
million

8.5 
million

9.3 
million

10.1
million

10.9
million

27.3
million

30.1
million

32.9
 million

35.7 
million

38.5 
million

41.3 
million

44.1 
million

46.9 
million

49.7 
million

52.5 
million

04 QuAlity trAnSit And locAl connector buSeS AnnuAl boArdingS – 
including contrActed School buSeS

100%

100%
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Priority  
FocuS 
one

real time service information has been extended to rail services 
both at the stations (excluding mt albert station) and on the maxx 
website this year.

note: the 2011 actual result represents access to real time service information via www.maxx.co.nz 
for bus passengers

target

44% 49% 54% 59% 64% 69% 74% 79% 84% 89%

06 PercentAge oF Public trAnSPort PASSengerS with AcceSS to  
reAl time Service inFormAtion

public transport subsidy per passenger kilometre as at 30 June 2012, 
was 24 cents (cpi adjusted) which is in line with the target.  
public transport subsidy (cpi adjusted) per passenger for the  
12 months ended 30 June 2012 was $2.35 (Bus – $1.75, rail – $5.98 
and ferry – $1.07).

note: the 2011 actual result is for the full year to 30 June 2011 and therefore includes four months 
previously reported in arta.

target

89 peR CenT

target met

2012 Target: 89%
2012 Actual: 89%
2011 Actual: 73%

+

24 CenTs

target met+

2012 Target: 24 cents
2012 Actual: 24 cents
2011 Actual: 23 cents

33 
cents

32 
cents

31 
cents

30 
cents

29 
cents

28
cents

27 
cents

26 
cents

25 
cents

24 
cents

100%

100%

 
05 Public trAnSPort SubSidy Per PASSenger kilometre
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an external party conducted an on-board survey with public 
transport passengers, using a self completion methodology. the 
overall public transport experience was rated positively (good/very 
good/excellent) by 85% of respondents. overall satisfaction (good/
very good/excellent) by transport mode: ferry – 92%, Bus – 82%, 
train – 82%.

various public transport projects (e.g. real-time public information 
system, integrated fares and ticketing, electric trains, more bus and 
transit lanes) are continuing to progress well. these projects will help 
improve customer satisfaction with public transport services.

target

78% 79% 80% 81% 82% 83% 84% 85% 86% 87%

07 PercentAge oF Public trAnSPort PASSengerS SAtiSFied with  
their Public trAnSPort Service

auckland council conducted an annual survey on resident and 
ratepayer satisfaction with a range of its services and facilities, which 
includes services and facilities provided by auckland transport.

2012 actual customer satisfaction survey result includes very satisfied 
(11%), satisfied (39%) and neutral (35%). the target of 75% includes 
extremely satisfied, very satisfied or satisfied.

note: 2011 actual customer satisfaction survey: includes very satisfied (7%), satisfied (36%) and 
neutral (36%).

target

85 peR CenT

target exceeDeD+

2012 Target: 75%
2012 Actual: 85%
2011 Actual: 79%

40% 45% 50% 55% 60% 65% 70% 75% 80% 85%

08 PercentAge oF reSidentS SAtiSFied with the QuAlity oF roAdS  
in the AucklAnd region

98% 

2012 Target: 87%
2012 Actual: 85%
2011 Actual: 86%

target not met-

85 peR CenT

100%
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Priority  
FocuS 
one

2012 actual customer satisfaction survey includes very satisfied 
(11%), satisfied (35%), and neutral (38%). the target of 75% includes 
extremely satisfied, very satisfied or satisfied.

Note:	2011	actual	customer	satisfaction	survey	includes	very	satisfied	(8%),	satisfied	(37%)	and	
neutral (35%).

target

84 peR CenT

target exceeDeD+

2012 Target: 75%
2012 Actual: 84%
2011 Actual: 80%

3% 12% 21% 30% 39% 48% 57% 66% 75% 84%

2012 actual customer satisfaction survey includes very satisfied 
(13%), satisfied (33%) and neutral (28%). the target of 75% includes 
extremely satisfied, very satisfied or satisfied. auckland transport 
will continue to improve the condition of existing footpaths within 
the funding available. priority will be given to footpaths in very 
poor condition.

Note:	2011	actual	customer	satisfaction	survey	includes	very	satisfied	(11%),	satisfied	(34%)	and	
neutral (31%).

target

74 peR CenT

target not met-

2012 Target: 75%
2012 Actual: 74%
2011 Actual: 76%

66% 67% 68% 69% 70% 71% 72% 73% 74% 75%

09 PercentAge oF reSidentS SAtiSFied with the SurFAce For All SeAled  
roAdS in the AucklAnd region (excluding motorwAyS)

10 PercentAge oF reSidentS SAtiSFied with the  
QuAlity oF FootPAthS in their locAl AreA

99% 

100%
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79 peR CenT

target exceeDeD+

2012 Target: 75%
2012 Actual: 79%
2011 Actual: 76%

2012 actual customer satisfaction survey includes very satisfied (7%), 
satisfied (36%), and neutral (36%). the target of 75% includes extremely 
satisfied, very satisfied or satisfied.

note: 2011 actual customer satisfaction survey includes very satisfied (7%), satisfied (33%) and 
neutral (36%).

target

43% 47% 51% 55% 59% 63% 67% 71% 75% 79%

11 PercentAge oF reSidentS SAtiSFied with the QuAlity  
oF FootPAthS in the AucklAnd region

12 PercentAge oF telePhone cAllS to mAxx cAll centre  
AnSwered within 20 SecondS

maxx call centre has received 580,046 calls in the 12 months ended 
30 June 2012 and is meeting the performance standard of 86% of calls 
answered within 20 seconds. average call wait time was 11 seconds. 
rugby World cup 2011 (rWc 2011) was a significant highlight of the 
year and a resource intensive project. maxx received its biggest call 
volumes of the year during this period, with 64,579 calls in september 
2011 and 56,562 calls in october 2011.

apart from the calls received from the maxx call centre, auckland 
transport received calls from the Hop line (34,511 calls in the twelve 
months ended 30 June 2012). auckland council also take calls on 
behalf of auckland transport via the auckland transport number  
(355-3553).
note: the 2011 actual results is for eight months. average wait time was 16 seconds.

target

2012 Target: 80% or better
2012 Actual: 86%
2011 Actual: 79%

32% 38% 44% 50% 56% 62% 68% 74% 80% 86%

86 peR CenT

target exceeDeD+

100%

100%
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Priority  
FocuS 
one

13 ProPortion oF ArteriAl roAd network For which reAl  
time trAvel or congeStion inFormAtion AvAilAble

14 ProPortion oF ArteriAl roAd network with SignAl oPtimiSAtion in PlAce

a route optimisation programme was initiated which identified a 
number of major arterial routes where traffic signal coordination and 
other traffic management initiatives can achieve improvements in 
travel time reliability, safety and reductions in emissions. for the year 
ended 30 June 2012, route optimisation on 16 segments of arterials 
routes were implemented. the Dominion road, symonds street and 
saint lukes routes have been completed and other routes in various 
stages of completion are greenlane, great south road, Broadway 
and khyber pass.

target

10 peR CenT

target met+

2012 Target: 10%
2012 Actual: 10%
2011 Actual: new measure

1% 2% 3% 4% 5% 6% 7% 8% 9% 10%

a project was initiated to enable a better understanding of road 
network performance and expected travel times at different times 
of the day. Data is gathered in real time and used to predict travel 
times for the route. this information is then made available to the 
public. the city centre to airport route now has six electronic variable 
message signs that can display projected journey times. preliminary 
results indicate that travel times have significantly improved along 
this route and are being maintained at an average of 40 minutes 
per trip during peak times. congestion information is available on 
the nZta website. this project is one of the first to apply the one 
system approach where the journey includes both arterials routes 
and segments of the motorway.

target

8 peR CenT

target met+

2012 Target: 8%
2012 Actual: 8%
2011 Actual: new measure

3.5% 4.0% 4.5% 5.0% 5.5% 6.0% 6.5% 7.0% 7.5% 8.0%

100%

100%
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pedestrian activity on city centre streets 
has increased by between 50 and 140 
per cent since the new shared spaces 
were introduced in the city centre.

auckland transport maintains 6,900km of footpaths.

03030303
sectionsectionsection

02
section

01010101
sectionsectionsectionsection

overall Percentage score: 
Priority focus one:  

mAintAin And mAke beSt uSe  
oF the exiSting networkS 99.8%
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priority  
focuS 
two Performance measures  

Invest In new Infrastructure

1a.  airport to city centre via manukau road

tArGEt

37 mInutes

target exceeDeD+

2012 Target: 41 minutes
2012 Actual: 37 minutes
2011 Actual: 41 minutes 

73
minutes

69
minutes

65
minutes

61
minutes

57
minutes

53
minutes

49
minutes

45
minutes

41
minutes

37
minutes

38 mInutes

target exceeDeD+

2012 Target: 41 minutes
2012 Actual: 38 minutes 
2011 Actual: 41 minutes 

1B.  city centre to airport via manukau road

tArGEt

65
minutes

62
minutes

59
minutes

56
minutes

53
minutes

50
minutes

47
minutes

44
minutes

41
minutes

38
minutes

01  travel times (minutes) along strategically important  
arterial routes during morning peak hour

the 2012 actual travel times were measured in november 2011. 
these represent the average travel time of 85% of trips along the 
strategically important arterial routes during the morning peak hour. 
a number of factors can affect the travel time such as roadworks or major 
developments disrupting traffic flow. the 2012 target travel times were 
based on the travel times measured in november 2010.

100%

100%
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1c.  St lukeS to St johnS via St lukeS road/greenlane/remuera road

tArGEt

40 mInutes

target exceeDeD+

2012 Target: 41 minutes
2012 Actual: 40 minutes
2011 Actual: 41 minutes 

49
minutes

48
minutes

47
minutes

46
minutes

45
minutes

44
minutes

43
minutes

42
minutes

41
minutes

40
minutes

1d.  St johnS to St lukeS via remuera road/greenlane/St lukeS road

tArGEt

53 mInutes

target exceeDeD+

2012 Target: 58 minutes 
2012 Actual: 53 minutes 
2011 Actual: 58 minutes 

98
minutes

93
minutes

88
minutes

83
minutes

78
minutes

73
minutes

68
minutes

63
minutes

58
minutes

53
minutes

32 mInutes

target exceeDeD+

2012 Target: 34 minutes
2012 Actual: 32 minutes 
2011 Actual: 34 minutes 

1e.  albany to birkenhead via glenfield road

tArGEt

50
minutes

48
minutes

46
minutes

44
minutes

42
minutes

40
minutes

38
minutes

36
minutes

34
minutes

32
minutes

100%

100%

100%
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priority  
focuS 
two

1g.  henderSon to city centre via great north road

tArGEt

50 mInutes

target met+

2012 Target: 50 minutes  
2012 Actual: 50 minutes 
2011 Actual: 50 minutes  

95
minutes

90
minutes

85
minutes

80
minutes

75
minutes

70
minutes

65
minutes

60
minutes

55
minutes

50
minutes

34 mInutes

target exceeDeD+

2012 Target: 38 minutes
2012 Actual: 34 minutes 
2011 Actual: 38 minutes 

1h.  city centre to henderSon via great north road

tArGEt

70
minutes

66
minutes

62
minutes

58
minutes

54
minutes

50
minutes

46
minutes

42
minutes

38
minutes

34
minutes

1f.  birkenhead to albany via glenfield road

tArGEt

26 mInutes

target met+

2012 Target: 26 minutes
2012 Actual: 26 minutes
2011 Actual: 26 minutes 

35
minutes

34
minutes

33
minutes

32
minutes

31
minutes

30
minutes

29
minutes

28
minutes

27
minutes

26
minutes

100%

100%

100%
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2a.  from Sh20 to Sh1 via nielSon Street

tArGEt

18 mInutes

target not met-

2012 Target: 16 minutes 
2012 Actual: 18 minutes
2011 Actual: 16 minutes 

34
minutes

32
minutes

30
minutes

28
minutes

26
minutes

24
minutes

22
minutes

20
minutes

18
minutes

16
minutes

2B.  from Sh1 to Sh20 via nielSon Street

tArGEt

14 mInutes

target not met-

2012 Target: 13 minutes 
2012 Actual: 14 minutes  
2011 Actual: 13 minutes  

22
minutes

21
minutes

20
minutes

19
minutes

18
minutes

17
minutes

16
minutes

15
minutes

14
minutes

13
minutes

02 travel times (minutes) along strategically important  
freight routes during the inter-peak period (9am-4pm)

the 2012 actual travel times were measured in november 2011. 
these represent the average travel time of 85% of trips along strategically 
important freight routes during the inter-peak period (9am-4pm). 
a number of factors can affect the travel time such as roadworks or major 
developments disrupting traffic flow. the 2012 target travel times were 
based on the travel times measured in november 2010.

89% 

93% 

Note: Actuals slightly behind target due to extensive roadworks around onehunga Mall / Gloucester Park area.

Note: Actuals slightly behind target due to extensive roadworks around onehunga Mall / Gloucester Park area.
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priority  
focuS 
two

2e.  from Sh1 to Sh18 via wairau road

tArGEt

8 mInutes

target met+

2012 Target: 8 minutes  
2012 Actual: 8 minutes 
2011 Actual: 8 minutes  

17
minutes

16
minutes

15
minutes

14
minutes

13
minutes

12
minutes

11
minutes

10
minutes

9
minutes

8
minutes

10 mInutes

target exceeDeD+

2012 Target: 11 minutes
2012 Actual: 10 minutes 
2011 Actual: 11 minutes 

2c.  from Sylvia park to eaSt tamaki via South-eaStern arterial

tArGEt

19
minutes

18
minutes

17
minutes

16
minutes

15
minutes

14
minutes

13
minutes

12
minutes

11
minutes

10
minutes

2d.  from eaSt tamaki to Sylvia park via South-eaStern arterial

tArGEt

10 mInutes

target exceeDeD+

2012 Target: 12 minutes
2012 Actual: 10 minutes
2011 Actual: 12 minutes 

28
minutes

26
minutes

24
minutes

22
minutes

20
minutes

18
minutes

16
minutes

14
minutes

12
minutes

10
minutes

100%

100%

100%
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ovErAll PErcENtAGE scorE: 
PrIorIty Focus two:  

inveSt in new  
infraStructure 98.9%

8 mInutes

target met+

2012 Target: 8 minutes  
2012 Actual: 8 minutes 
2011 Actual: 8 minutes 

2f.  from Sh18 to Sh1 via wairau road

tArGEt

17
minutes

16
minutes

15
minutes

14
minutes

13
minutes

12
minutes

11
minutes

10
minutes

9
minutes

8
minutes

2g.  from eaSt tamaki to Sh1 highbrook interchange via harriS road

tArGEt

10 mInutes

target met+

2012 Target: 10 minutes 
2012 Actual: 10 minutes
2011 Actual: 10 minutes 

19
minutes

18
minutes

17
minutes

16
minutes

15
minutes

14
minutes

13
minutes

12
minutes

11
minutes

10
minutes

2h.  from Sh1 highbrook interchange to eaSt tamaki via harriS road

tArGEt

10 mInutes

target exceeDeD+

2012 Target: 11 minutes 
2012 Actual: 10 minutes  
2011 Actual: 11 minutes  

19
minutes

18
minutes

17
minutes

16
minutes

15
minutes

14
minutes

13
minutes

12
minutes

11
minutes

10
minutes

100%

100%

100%
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priority  
focuS 
three PErForMANcE MEAsurEs  

MANAGE thE dEMANd For trAvEl

1.  increaSe number of travel planS

a travel plan is a targeted set of actions to reduce car travel, 
especially single occupancy cars and encourage use of public 
transport, walking, cycling and car pooling. auckland transport 
delivers travelWise – an internationally recognised programme 
supporting schools with travel plans and safe travel to school – and 
the commute programme, which partners tertiary institutions and 
businesses to develop travel plans. 315 travel plans were active 
by the end of June 2012: 64 in start-up phase and 251 being 
implemented.

tArGEt

2012 Target: 302 travel plans
2012 Actual: 315 travel plans
2011 Actual: new measure

198 211 224 237 250 263 276 289 302 315

315
target exceeDeD+

travel Plans

2.  morning peak (7-9am) car tripS avoided through travel planning initiativeS

12,271 car trips were avoided through travel planning initiatives 
during the morning peak (7-9am). over 330,000 students and 
employees are participating in the travel plan programme. people 
are switching to a wide range of travel modes, particularly the active 
modes of walking, cycling and public transport.

tArGEt

2012 Target: 8,800
2012 Actual: 12,271
2011 Actual: 8,417

800 1,800 2,800 3,800 4,800 5,800 6,800 7,800 8,800 12,271

12,271
target exceeDeD+

car trIPs avoIded

100%

100%
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3.  percentage of driverS complying with parking reStrictionS

results from surveys of on-street parking in august 2011, november 
2011, february 2012 and may 2012 indicated a relatively high level 
of driver compliance with parking restrictions. the survey showed an 
average compliance level of 84%. 

Note: the 2011 actual results is the average of February 2011 and May 2011 compliance surveys 
of four centres.

tArGEt

75% 76% 77% 78% 79% 80% 81% 82% 83% 84%

2012 Target: maintain 2011 compliance level
2012 Actual: 84%
2011 Actual: 84%

target met+

84 Per cent

100%

ovErAll PErcENtAGE scorE 
PrIorIty Focus thrEE:  
MANAGE thE dEMANd  

For trAvEl 100%

Eddie Kim from Bigfoot Adventures, a contractor to Auckland Transport, offers cycle safety advice at the official 
opening of Te Ara Tahuna, the Orewa Estuary Cycleway and Walkway, December 2011.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the yeAr ended 30 June 2012

   Actual Budget Actual 
   12 months to 12 months to 8 months to 
   30 Jun 2012 30 Jun 2012 30 Jun 2011

  Notes $000 $000 $000

income

Funding from Auckland Council 2 323,215 277,215 150,792

operational funding from NZ transport Agency  190,723 206,057 113,957

Capital funding from NZ transport Agency  71,666 151,185 84,429

Finance income 3 168 – 173

other income 4 169,424 141,186 127,658

total income  755,196 775,643 477,009

expenditure

personnel costs 5 70,178 68,745 44,317

depreciation and amortisation expense 13, 14 226,798 222,962 144,300

Finance costs 3 37,636 – –

other expenses 6 522,408 501,072 328,900

other losses/(gains) 7 8,602 – (571)

total expenditure  865,622 792,779 516,946

deficit before tax  (110,426) (17,136) (39,937)

Income tax 8 (922) – 474

total deficit after tax  (111,348) (17,136) (39,463)

other comprehenSive income

revaluation gain on property, plant and equipment 19 193,395 – 953,893

deferred tax on revaluation 8 2,677 – (3,260)

Cash flow hedges 19 (19,454) – –

other comprehensive income for the period  176,618 – 950,633

total comprehensive income for the period  65,270 (17,136) 911,170

Terallen1
Text Box
DRAFT UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Terallen1
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 2 
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the accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

Statement of Financial Position
AS At 30 June 2012

   Actual Budget Actual 
   30 Jun 2012 30 Jun 2012 30 Jun 2011

  Notes $000 $000 $000

ASSetS

current ASSetS

 Cash and cash equivalents 9 2,840 5,000 2,251

 debtors and other receivables 10 186,428 169,046 214,071

 Inventories 11 5,160 6,000 5,826

 other assets 12 1,174 12,000 11,680

 Asset held for sale to Auckland Council  – 1,629 1,629

 total current assets  195,602 193,675 235,457

non-current ASSetS

 property, plant and equipment 13 13,569,719 13,248,225 12,923,619

 Intangible assets 14 30,841 25,344 26,712

 debtors and other receivables 10 57,874 – –

 total non-current assets  13,658,434 13,273,569 12,950,331

total assets  13,854,036 13,467,244 13,185,788

LiAbiLitieS

current LiAbiLitieS

 Creditors and other payables 15 176,933 141,079 182,479

 employee entitlements 16 7,831 8,000 6,692

 derivative financial instruments 17 3,800 – 2,561

 Borrowings 18 448 – –

 total current liabilities  189,012 149,079 191,732

non-current LiAbiLitieS

 deferred tax 8 11,020 12,775 12,775

 employee entitlements 16 900 2,000 958

 derivative financial instruments 17 50,663 – 171

 Borrowings 18 112,121 – –

 total non-current liabilities  174,704 14,775 13,904

total liabilities  363,716 163,854 205,636

net assets  13,490,320 13,303,390 12,980,152

equity

 Contributed capital  12,513,880 12,409,356 12,068,982

 retained (deficit)/surplus  (150,811) (56,599) (39,463)

 other reserves  1,127,251 950,633 950,633

total equity 19 13,490,320 13,303,390 12,980,152

mark Ford, chairman
September 2012

paul Lockey, director
September 2012



Section three:  FINANCIALs ANd gLossAry84

AuCkLANd trANsport ANNuAL report 2012

the accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

   Actual Budget Actual 
   12 months to 12 months to 8 months to 
   30 Jun 2012 30 Jun 2012 30 Jun 2011

  Note $000 $000 $000

equity at start of period  12,980,152 13,026,078 –

Capital contribution from ArtA on 1 November  – – 365,294

Capital contribution from ArtNL and group on 1 November  – – 7,219

Capital contribution from disestablished councils on 1 November  – – 11,501,092

total capital contribution on 1 november 2011  – – 11,873,605

deficit for the period  (111,348) (17,136) (39,463)

gain on property, plant and equipment revaluation  193,395 –  953,893

deferred tax on revaluation  2,677 –  (3,260)

Cash flow hedges  (19,454) –  – 

total comprehensive income  65,270 (17,136) 911,170

Capital contribution from Auckland Council during the period  444,898 294,448 195,377

balance at end of the period 19 13,490,320 13,303,390 12,980,152

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the yeAr ended 30 June 2012
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the accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

   Actual Budget Actual 
   12 months to 12 months to 8 months to 
   30 Jun 2012 30 Jun 2012 30 Jun 2011

  Notes $000 $000 $000

cASh FLowS From operAting ActivitieS
cash provided from:

 Income from activities  139,732 141,186 98,795

 operating funding from Auckland Council  222,574 222,574 140,498

 operational funding from NZ transport Agency  172,981 206,057 89,783

 Capital funding from Auckland Council  54,641 54,641 10,294

 Capital funding from NZ transport Agency  73,404 151,185 89,927

 Interest received  168 – 173

 goods and services tax  13,074 – –

 total cash provided  676,574 775,643 429,470

cash applied to:

 payments to suppliers and employees  607,980 569,817 219,276

 Interest paid  2,494 – –

 goods and services tax  – – 12,912

 total cash applied  610,474 569,817 232,188

net cash from operating activities 20 66,100 205,826 197,282

cASh FLowS From inveSting ActivitieS

  cash provided from:

 sale of property, plant and equipment  10,831 – –

  cash applied to:

 purchase of property, plant and equipment  542,010 546,200 279,595

net cash applied to investing activities  (531,179) (546,200) (279,595)

cASh FLowS From FinAncing ActivitieS

  cash provided from:

 Capital contribution from Auckland Council  353,099 340,374 77,908

 Loan from Auckland Council  112,773 – –

 total cash provided  465,872 340,374 77,908

  cash applied to:

 repayment of loan from Auckland Council  204 – –

 total cash applied  204 – 77,908

net cash from financing activities  465,668 340,374 77,908

net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  589 – (4,405)

 opening cash and cash equivalents  2,251 2,251 6,656

closing cash and cash equivalents 9 2,840 2,251 2,251

  the gst (net) component of operating activities reflects the net gst paid and received with the Inland revenue department.  
the gst (net) component has been presented on a net basis, as the gross amounts do not provide meaningful information for financial 
statement purposes and to be consistent with the presentation basis of the other primary financial statements.

Statement of Cash Flows
For the yeAr ended 30 June 2012
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   Actual Budget Actual 
   12 months to 12 months to 8 months to 
   30 Jun 2012 30 Jun 2012 30 Jun 2011

  Note $000 $000 $000

new cApitAL expenditure

 roads  185,450 252,865 111,974

 public transport1  66,693 75,879 38,603

 parking  17,624 16,745 3,818

 electric trains  94,649 – –

 other  10,265 756 16,738

 total new capital expenditure  374,681 346,245 171,133

renewAL cApitAL expenditure

 roads  188,450 185,117 127,305

 public transport  4,312 14,145 1,031

 parking  216 176 –

 other  – 517 542

 total renewal capital expenditure  192,978 199,955 128,878

veSted ASSetS

 roads  24,037 – 37,600

 total vested assets  24,037 – 37,600

 total capital expenditure  591,696 546,200 337,611

Funding

 NZ transport Agency subsidies – new1  65,700 103,677 55,791

 NZ transport Agency subsidies – renewal  10,238 47,508 36,743

 Capital funding from Auckland Council 2 54,641 54,641 10,294

 other capital grants  555 – 1,806

 Loan funding from Auckland Council  94,649 – –

 Investment by Auckland Council  331,131 340,374 195,377

 sale of assets  10,745 – –

 Vested assets  24,037 – 37,600

 total funding  591,696 546,200 337,611

1 Includes $4.3m (2011: $8.1m) for the central system of the AIFs projects, refer note 12.

Summary of Capital Expenditure
For the yeAr ended 30 June 2012
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1 StAtement oF Accounting poLicieS

 reporting entity

Auckland transport is a Council Controlled organisation of the Auckland Council (‘the Council’) and is domiciled in New Zealand. 

Auckland transport is a public-benefit entity as defined under New Zealand equivalents to International Financial reporting 
standards (‘NZ IFrs’). Auckland transport’s primary objective is to provide services and facilities for the community as a social benefit 
rather than to make a financial return.

the financial statements are for the year ended 30 June 2012 and were authorised for issue by the Board of Auckland transport  
on 20 August 2012. Neither Auckland Council nor Auckland transport Board have the power to amend the financial statements  
once adopted.

SigniFicAnt Accounting poLicieS

the principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. 

(A) bASiS oF prepArAtion 

statement of compliance 

the financial statements of Auckland transport have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local government 
Act 2002, which includes the requirement to comply with New Zealand generally accepted accounting practice (‘NZ gAAp’). 

these financial statements have been prepared in accordance with NZ gAAp. they comply with NZ IFrs, and other applicable 
Financial reporting standards, as appropriate for public benefit entities.

Measurement base 

the financial statements are prepared based on historical cost modified by the revaluation of the following:

•	 Financial	assets	and	liabilities	at	fair	value	

•	 Derivative	financial	instruments	at	fair	value

•	 Certain	classes	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	at	methods	appropriate	to	the	class	of	asset.

the methods used to measure fair value are discussed in the specific accounting policies.

Functional and presentation currency 

the financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars ($), which is Auckland transport’s functional currency.

Budget figures

the budget figures are those included in the Auckland Council Annual plan 2011/2012, adopted by Council on 28 June 2011.

costs allocation

Cost of service for each activity was allocated as follows:

•	 	Direct	costs	are	charged	directly	to	activities.	Indirect	costs	are	charged	to	activities	using	appropriate	cost	drivers	such	as	actual	 
usage, staff numbers and floor area

•	 	Direct	costs	are	those	costs	directly	attributable	to	an	activity.	Indirect	costs	are	those	costs	that	cannot	be	identified	in	an	
economically feasible manner with a specific activity.

changes in accounting policies

there have been no changes in accounting policies during the financial year.

comparative information

Auckland transport came into existence on 1 November 2010, accordingly comparative information is provided for the eight month 
period from 1 November 2010 to 30 June 2011. some balances have been reclassified to achieve consistency in disclosures with the 
current period.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the yeAr ended 30 June 2012
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For the yeAr ended 30 June 2012 continued

1 StAtement oF Accounting poLicieS (CoNtINued)

changes to financial reporting standards

the external reporting Board has introduced a revised Accounting standards Framework. the revised framework intends to 
introduce public Benefit Accounting standards (‘pAs’) comprising International public sector Accounting standards (‘IpsAs’), 
modified as appropriate for New Zealand circumstances. this means that financial reporting requirements for public benefit entities 
are frozen in the short-term and that all new NZ IFrs with a mandatory effective date for annual reporting commencing on or after 
1 January 2012 are not applicable to public benefit entities. Accordingly, no disclosure has been made about new or amended 
NZ IFrs that exclude public benefit entities from their scope.

Amendment to NZ IAs 12 Income tax – deferred tax: recovery of underlying assets. this amendment is not relevant to Auckland 
transport as it does not own any investment properties.

(b) Foreign currency trAnSLAtion 

Auckland transport translates its foreign currency transactions into New Zealand dollars using the exchange rates at the dates of 
the transactions. It records foreign exchange gains and losses from the settlement of transactions, and from translation at year-end 
exchange rates, in the surplus or deficit.

(c) property, pLAnt And equipment

property, plant and equipment consist of:

(i) operational assets
  these include land, buildings, wharf buildings, rolling stock, locomotive improvements, wharves, furniture and fittings, computer 

hardware, motor vehicles, plant and equipment, bus stations and shelters and train stations.

(ii) Infrastructure assets
 these include the land-infrastructure and roading infrastructures.

Land (operational)

Land (operational) includes land held for roading purposes, land under off-street car parks and land under wharves.

Building

Building includes buildings held for roading purposes, car park buildings, wharf buildings and other operational buildings.

Rolling stock

rolling stock includes carriages and locomotives.

Land infrastructure

Land infrastructure includes restricted land, land under roads and access to/from rail station.

Roading infrastructure

roading infrastructure includes roading assets (e.g. footpath, streetlights, traffic control, pavements, etc.).

Plant and equipment

plant and equipment includes parking equipment (e.g. barrier arms, handheld parking infringement machines, etc.) and public 
transport equipment (e.g. public transport information, signal pre-emption, CCtV camera, etc.).

initial recognition

Property, plant and equipment at the time of transition

property, plant and equipment transferred at the time of transition are initially shown at their previous carrying values (net book value) 
in the financial statements of the predecessor councils, ArtA and ArtNL. 

Property, plant and equipment acquired after transition

property, plant and equipment acquired after transition are initially shown at cost or at fair value in the case where an asset is 
acquired at no cost, or for a nominal cost. Cost includes any costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. 
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1 StAtement oF Accounting poLicieS (CoNtINued)

subsequent costs 

subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount, or recognised as a separate asset, when it is likely future economic 
benefits associated with the item will flow to Auckland transport, and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs 
and maintenance are charged to surplus or deficit in the financial period they relate to.

Valuation of assets 

Auckland transport accounts for revaluations on a class of assets basis.

Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is transferred to the gross carrying amount of the asset, and the asset cost is 
restated to the revalued amount.

Increases in asset carrying amounts due to revaluation increase revaluation reserves in equity. decreases in asset carrying amounts 
decrease revaluation reserves in equity only to the extent that the class of assets has sufficient revaluation reserves to absorb the 
reduction. All other decreases are charged to surplus or deficit.

If a revaluation increase reverses a decrease previously recognised in the surplus or deficit, the increase is recognised first in the 
surplus or deficit to reverse previous decreases. Any residual increase is applied to revaluation reserves in equity.

Additions

the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future economic 
benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to Auckland transport and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. In most instances, an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised at its cost. Where an asset is acquired at no cost, 
or for a nominal cost, it is recognised at fair value at the date of acquisition.

Disposals

gains and losses on the sale or disposal of assets are determined by comparing the proceeds of sale with the asset’s carrying amount. 
gains and losses are included in the surplus or deficit. When a revalued asset is sold or disposed of, any amount in the revaluation 
reserves in equity relating to that asset is transferred to general equity. 

Depreciation 

Land (operational) and land-infrastructure are not depreciated. Assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis. depreciation writes off 
the cost of the assets to residual value over their useful lives.

class of asset depreciated  estimated useful life (years)

operational assets

•	 Buildings	 10-100

•	 Wharf	buildings	 7-100

•	 Rolling	stock	 2-9

•	 Locomotive	improvements	 2-9

•	 Wharves	 50-100

•	 Furniture	and	fittings	 5-15

•	 Computer	hardware	 3-8

•	 Plant	and	equipment	 10-25

•	 Bus	stations	and	shelters	 10-99

•	 Train	stations	 5-99

•	 Motor	vehicles	 5

infrastructure assets

•	 Public	transport	 10-80

•	 Roading	 10-120

•	 Car	parking	 10-50

Auckland transport reviews and, if necessary, adjusts the assets’ residual values and useful lives at each year-end. 

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the yeAr ended 30 June 2012 continued
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capital works in progress

Capital works in progress are not depreciated. the total cost of a project is transferred to the relevant asset class on its completion 
and then depreciated. 

(d) intAngibLe ASSetS 

Intangible assets are initially recorded at cost. the cost of an internally generated intangible asset represents expenditure incurred 
in the development phase of the asset only. Intangible assets acquired at no cost are initially recognised at fair value, where that is 
reliably measurable.

subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives are recorded at cost, less any amortisation and impairment 
losses, and are reviewed annually for impairment losses. Assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised but are tested, at least 
annually, for impairment, and are carried at cost, less accumulated impairment losses.

realised gains and losses arising from the disposal of intangible assets are recognised in the surplus or deficit in the period in which 
the disposal occurs. 

Where an intangible asset’s recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, it will be reported at its recoverable amount and an 
impairment loss will be recognised. Losses resulting from impairment are reported in the surplus or deficit. 

operating leases – land

the operating leases on land are long term land leases on which stations have been built. they are recognised in the accounts at fair 
value and amortised over the life of the underlying asset.

computer software

Computer software licences are capitalised based on the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the software. these costs are 
amortised using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives (three to eight years).

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense when incurred.

Costs directly associated with the development of identifiable and unique software products controlled by Auckland transport, and 
that will probably generate economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognised as intangible assets (e.g. software 
development employee costs). Computer software development costs recognised as assets are amortised using the straight-line 
method over their estimated useful lives (not exceeding eight years). staff training costs are recognised as an expense when incurred.

(e) impAirment oF non-FinAnciAL ASSetS

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that have a 
finite useful life are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be 
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised if the estimated recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount. the 
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Value in use is depreciated replacement 
cost for an asset, where the future economic benefits or service potential of the asset are not primarily dependent on the asset’s 
ability to generate net cash inflows, and where the entity would, if deprived of the asset, replace its remaining future economic 
benefits or service potential. the value in use for cash-generating assets is the present value of expected future cash flows.

If an asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is impaired and the carrying amount is written down to the 
recoverable amount. For revalued assets, the impairment loss is recognised against the revaluation reserve for that class of asset. 
Where that results in a debit balance in the revaluation reserve, the debit balance is recognised in the surplus or deficit. For assets not 
carried at a revalued amount, the total impairment loss is recognised in the surplus or deficit.

the reversal of an impairment loss on a revalued asset is credited to the revaluation reserve. However, to the extent that an 
impairment loss for that class of asset was previously recognised in the surplus or deficit, a reversal of the impairment loss is also 
recognised in the surplus or deficit. For assets not carried at a revalued amount the reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the 
surplus or deficit.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the yeAr ended 30 June 2012 continued
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1 StAtement oF Accounting poLicieS (CoNtINued)

(F) FinAnciAL ASSetS 

Auckland transport classifies its financial assets in the following categories:

•	 Financial	assets	at	fair	value	through	surplus	or	deficit

•	 Available-for-sale	financial	assets

•	 Loans	and	receivables

•	 Held-to-maturity	investments.

the classification depends on the reason behind acquiring the investment. Auckland transport decides how to classify its investments 
when they are acquired.

purchases and sales of investments are recorded on the value date at fair value plus transaction costs, unless they are carried at fair 
value through surplus or deficit, in which case the transaction costs are recognised in the surplus or deficit. Financial assets are no 
longer recognised when the right to receive cash flows from the financial assets has expired or has been transferred.

the fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for unlisted 
securities), Auckland transport establishes fair value through valuation techniques.

At each year-end, Auckland transport assesses whether there is evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. 
Any impairment loss is recognised in the surplus or deficit.

Financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit 

this category has two subcategories: financial assets held for trading and those designated at fair value through surplus or deficit 
on initial recognition. A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally to sell in the short term. derivatives are also 
categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. they are classified as current assets if they are held for trading 
and expected to be realised within 12 months of the period end date.

After initial recognition financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit continue to be measured at fair value. realised and 
unrealised gains and losses arising from the changes in the fair value of the financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit 
category are included in the surplus or deficit in the period in which they arise.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are non-derivative financial assets designated in this category or 
not classified in the other categories. After initial recognition, they are measured at fair value. they are included in non-current assets, 
unless Auckland transport intends to dispose of the asset within 12 months of year-end. Auckland transport does not have any 
financial assets under this category.

After initial recognition they are measured at fair value, with gains and losses recognised directly in other comprehensive income 
except for impairment losses, which are recognised in the surplus or deficit.

Loans and receivables 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments not quoted in an active market.  
they arise when Auckland transport provides money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of selling the  
receivable asset. 

After initial recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less impairment. gains and losses 
are recognised in the surplus or deficit. Loans and receivables are included in current assets, except for those with maturities greater 
than 12 months after the year-end date, which are classified as non-current assets.

Held-to-maturity investments 

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments, and fixed maturities that 
Auckland transport management has the intention and ability to hold to maturity. 

After initial recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less impairment.

Auckland transport does not currently have any financial assets under this category.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the yeAr ended 30 June 2012 continued
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(g) derivAtive FinAnciAL inStrumentS 

Auckland transport uses derivative financial instruments to hedge exposure to foreign exchange. In accordance with its treasury 
policy, Auckland transport does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. 

the fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the year-end date. the quoted 
market price used for financial assets held by Auckland transport is the current bid price. the quoted market price for financial 
liabilities is the current ask price.

the fair values of forward foreign exchange contracts are determined using a discounted cash flows valuation technique based on 
quoted market prices. the inputs into the valuation model are from independently sourced market parameters such as currency rates. 

derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured 
at their fair value. the resulting gain or loss is recognised immediately in the surplus or deficit within ‘other gains(losses)’ unless the 
derivative instrument has been designated as a hedging instrument and qualifies for hedge accounting, in which case, the method of 
recognising the resulting gain or loss is discussed below.

Derivatives that qualify for hedge accounting

When a derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, Auckland transport documents a hedge relationship as either a cash 
flow hedge (hedge of a forecast transaction) or a fair value hedge (hedge of the fair value of a recognised asset or liability). Also 
documented are the nature of the risk being hedged, its risk-management objective, strategy for hedge transactions, identification of 
the hedging instrument and hedged item, and how the hedging instrument‘s effectiveness is to be assessed.

cash flow hedge 

the effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in 
equity in the hedging reserve. the gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recorded in the surplus or deficit.

When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold or terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets accounting criteria, any cumulative 
gain or loss in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction occurs. When a forecast 
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss reported in equity transfers to surplus or deficit.

Fair value hedge 

Auckland transport only applies fair value hedge accounting for hedging fixed interest risk on borrowings. the gain or loss relating to 
the effective portion of the interest rate swaps that hedge fixed-rate borrowings is recognised in the surplus or deficit within ‘finance 
costs’. the gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised in the surplus or deficit within ‘other gains/ (losses)’. Changes 
in the fair value of the hedged fixed-rate borrowings attributable to interest rate risk are recognised in the surplus or deficit within 
‘finance costs’.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for which 
the effective interest method is used is recorded in the surplus or deficit.

(h) inventorieS 

Inventories such as spare parts, stores and finished goods are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises direct 
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated on the 
basis of normal operating capacity.

Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on the basis of weighted average cost.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion (if 
applicable) and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Where inventories are acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, the cost is the current replacement cost at the date of 
acquisition.

the amount of any write-down in the value of inventories is recognised in the surplus or deficit.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the yeAr ended 30 June 2012 continued
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1 StAtement oF Accounting poLicieS (CoNtINued)

(i) trAde And other receivAbLeS 

trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value, and subsequently measured at amortised cost less any provision for 
impairment. trade receivables are due for settlement no more than 30 days from the date of recognition.

Auckland transport reviews the collection of trade receivables on an on-going basis and writes off debts known to be uncollectable. 
A provision is made for doubtful receivables when there is objective evidence that Auckland transport will not be able to collect all 
amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables. the amount provided is the difference between the receivable’s 
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. this amount provided 
is recorded in the surplus or deficit.

the carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of a provision account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the 
surplus or deficit. When a receivable is uncollectable, it is written off against the provision account.

(J) cASh And cASh equivALentS 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and deposits held at call with financial institutions. they also include other short-
term, highly liquid investments (with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash 
and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value) and bank overdrafts.

(k) equity 

equity is the shareholder’s interest in the organisation and is measured as the difference between total assets and total liabilities. 
equity is disaggregated and classified into contributed equity from shareholder, accumulated funds, and reserves.

(L) borrowingS 

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value (net of transaction costs) and subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any 
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and amortised cost is recognised in the surplus or deficit over the period 
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless Auckland transport has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability 
for at least 12 months after the year-end date.

(m) borrowing coStS

Auckland transport has elected to defer the adoption of NZ IAs 23 Borrowing Costs (revised 2007) in accordance with its transitional 
provisions that are applicable to public benefit entities.

Consequently, all borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

(n) current And deFerred income tAx

the income tax expense is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income, based on the New Zealand tax rate, and adjusted 
for changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities, and adjustments to income tax payable in respect of prior years.

deferred tax assets and liabilities account for temporary differences at the tax rates expected to apply when the assets are recovered 
or liabilities settled. this is based on those tax rates set by the government. the relevant tax rates are applied to the cumulative 
amounts of deductible and taxable temporary differences to measure the deferred tax asset or liability. 

An exception is made for certain temporary differences from the initial recognition of an asset or a liability. No deferred tax asset or 
liability is recognised in relation to these temporary differences if they came from a transaction, other than a business combination, 
that at the time of the transaction did not affect accounting profit or taxable profit and loss.

deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only to the extent it is likely that future 
taxable amounts will be available for Auckland transport.

Current and deferred tax balances attributable to amounts recognised directly in equity, such as asset revaluations, are also 
recognised directly in equity. 

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the yeAr ended 30 June 2012 continued
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the yeAr ended 30 June 2012 continued

1 StAtement oF Accounting poLicieS (CoNtINued)

(o) proviSionS 

provisions are recognised when:

•	 Auckland	Transport	has	a	present	legal	or	constructive	obligation	due	to	past	events

•	 It	is	more	likely	than	not	that	an	outflow	of	resources	will	be	required	to	settle	the	obligation

•	 The	amount	has	been	reliably	estimated.	

provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation, using a pre-tax discount rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. 

organisational 

An organisational provision is recognised where there is a legal or constructive obligation to meet redundancy expenses. the amount 
recorded in the financial statements is the estimated cost of this expense.

contractual 

A contractual provision is recognised when legal claims have been issued against Auckland transport for past transactions and it is 
probable that Auckland transport will be liable for these claims. the amount recorded in the financial statements is the estimated 
cost of these claims.

(p) creditorS And other pAyAbLeS 

these amounts represent unpaid liabilities for goods and services provided to Auckland transport before the end of the financial 
year. the amounts are unsecured and usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Creditors and other payables are initially measured 
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(q) goodS And ServiceS tAx (gSt) 

Items in the financial statements are exclusive of gst, with the exception of receivables and payables. the net amount of gst 
receivable from, or payable to the Inland revenue department is included as part of receivables or payables in the statement of 
financial position. Where gst is not recoverable as input tax, it is recognised as part of the related asset or expense.

(r) empLoyee beneFit LiAbiLitieS 

short-term employee benefit liabilities 

these include wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave. these liabilities are expected to be settled within 12 months of the 
reporting date. they include employees’ services up to the year-end date and are measured at the amounts Auckland transport 
expects to pay when the liabilities are settled. A liability is recognised for bonuses where they are contractually obliged or where 
there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation. Auckland transport recognises a liability for sick leave to the extent 
that absences in the coming year are expected to be greater than the sick leave entitlements earned in the coming year. the amount 
is calculated based on the unused sick leave entitlement that can be carried forward at balance date, to the extent that Auckland 
transport anticipates it will be used by staff to cover those future absences.

Long-term employee entitlements

entitlements that are payable beyond 12 months such as long-service leave have been actuarially measured as the present value of 
expected future payments for services provided by employees up to the year-end date. Consideration is given to expected future 
wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service. 

(S) revenue 

Auckland transport measures revenue at the fair value of the amounts received or receivable, net of discounts, duties and taxes paid.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the yeAr ended 30 June 2012 continued

1 StAtement oF Accounting poLicieS (CoNtINued)

Auckland transport receives revenue from the following main sources:

Auckland council grants

Auckland transport is funded by its parent the Auckland Council in order to deliver the agreed annual operational and capital 
programmes. this funding is recognised when the expenditure is incurred i.e. on an accrual basis.

new Zealand transport Agency (nZtA) grants

Auckland transport receives government grants from NZtA, which funds operational and capital expenditure. grants distribution 
from NZtA are recognised as income when the expenditure they cover is incurred i.e. on an accrual basis.

traffic and parking infringement income

Income and receivables are recognised when an infringement notice is issued based on the estimated recoverable amount. 
Infringement amounts not recovered after 60 days are lodged with the courts for collection. subsequent collections from the courts 
which differ to estimated recoverable amounts are recognised in income as received. the estimated amount expected to be received 
is reviewed at least annually.

Fare revenue

Auckland transport receives fare box revenue from certain bus and ferry and all rail services. this revenue is recognised when the 
ticket is purchased.

Vested assets

Where a physical asset is acquired for nil or nominal consideration, the fair value of the asset received is recognised as income. Assets 
vested to Auckland transport are recognised when control over the asset is obtained.

Vested assets arise when property developers undertake development which requires them to build roads and footpaths. When 
the development is complete those assets vest in the network provider. As Auckland transport controls roads and footpaths and 
accounts for the asset value the income from vesting comes to Auckland transport.

Auckland transport accounts for revenue for the following activities:

•	 Licenses	and	permits	revenue	–	on	application

•	 Rental	revenue	–	for	the	period	it	relates	to

•	 Interest	income	–	on	a	time	proportion	basis	using	the	effective	interest	method

•	 Other	grants	and	subsidies	–	when	received

•	 Contra	transactions	–	are	measured	at	the	fair	value	of	the	asset	received	or	the	fair	value	of	the	goods	given	up.

(t) grAnt expenditure

Non-discretionary grants are those grants that are awarded if the grant application meets the specified criteria and are recognised as 
expenditure when an application that meets the specified criteria for the grant has been received.

discretionary grants are those grants where Auckland transport has no obligation to award on receipt of the grant application and are 
recognised as expenditure when a successful applicant has been notified of Auckland transport’s decision.

(u) LeASeS 

operating leases 

With operating leases, the lessor retains the risks and benefits of ownership. Lease payments are recognised as an expense in the 
surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Finance leases 

Finance leases effectively transfer to the lessee the risks and benefits incidental to ownership. these are capitalised at the lesser of 
the fair value of the asset or the present value of the minimum lease payments. the leased assets and corresponding liabilities are 
recognised in the statement of financial position. Interest on finance leases is charged to surplus or deficit over the lease period.

Leased assets are depreciated over the period Auckland transport is expected to benefit from their use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the yeAr ended 30 June 2012 continued

1 StAtement oF Accounting poLicieS (CoNtINued)

Use of estimates and judgements

the preparation of financial statements requires Auckland transport’s management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the 
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are described in the following notes:

•	 Property,	plant	and	equipment	(note	13)

•	 Contingent	liabilities	(note	22).

Auckland council-owned property, plant and equipment

property, plant and equipment in the legal name of Auckland Council that Auckland transport has control over are recognised as an 
asset in the statement of financial position. Auckland transport considers it has assumed all the normal risks and rewards of ownership 
of this property, plant and equipment despite legal ownership not being transferred, and accordingly it would be misleading to 
exclude this property, plant and equipment from the financial statements.

traffic and parking infringement income

Infringement notices receivable not recovered after 60 days are lodged with the courts for collection. An analysis of historic record of 
collection percentages for infringements lodged with the courts have indicated that approximately 50 per cent of all infringements 
lodged with the courts are recovered within the first twelve months of lodgement. For the year ended 30 June 2012, an estimated 50 
per cent (2011: estimated at 25 per cent) of traffic and parking infringements issued during the period and outstanding at court are 
recognised as income and receivable. 

Discount Rates

A discount rate of 6 per cent has been applied to estimate the present value of future cash flows, with the exception of long term 
employee benefit calculations which are discounted using risk free rates published by the New Zealand treasury. this rate is based 
on the forecast average cost of funds in Auckland Council’s Long term plan. Where necessary the discount rate is adjusted for a risk 
premium specific to the asset or liability.

    Actual Actual 
    12 months to 8 months to 
    30 Jun 2012 30 Jun 2011

    $000 $000

2 Funding From AuckLAnd counciL

 operational funding from Auckland Council   222,574 140,498

 Capital funding from Auckland Council   54,641 10,294

 grant from Auckland Council for electric trains project   46,000 –

     323,215 150,792

  Auckland transport receives funding from Auckland Council in order to deliver the agreed annual operational and capital 
programmes within Auckland Council’s Annual plan.

3 FinAnce income And FinAnce coStS

 Finance income

 Interest income   168 173

     168 173

 Finance costs

 Interest expense   2,829 –

 realised interest rate swaps – not hedge accounted   773 –

 unrealised interest rate swaps – not hedge accounted   34,034 –

     37,636 –
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    Actual Actual 
    12 months to 8 months to 
    30 Jun 2012 30 Jun 2011

    $000 $000

4 other income

 parking and enforcement   74,546 40,948

 public transport income   46,249 28,826

 other operating grants and subsidies   9,498 8,209

 other capital grants   555 1,806

 Vested asset income   24,037 37,600

 other income   14,539 10,269

     169,424 127,658

  parking and enforcement income for the eight months ended 30 June 2011 was reduced by $1.1m, due to infringements receivable 
brought forward from terminating councils being reduced to align with Auckland transport’s Accounting policy for Infringements  
income recognition.

5 perSonneL coStS

 salaries and wages   82,514 47,195

 Less capitalised salaries and wages   (14,482) (5,206)

 defined contribution plan employer contributions   1,065 549

 Increase in employee benefit liabilities   1,081 1,779

 total personnel costs   70,178 44,317

 employer contributions to defined contribution plans include contributions to kiwisaver and super trust of New Zealand Fund.

6 other expenSeS

 Fees to principal auditor:

   Audit fees for financial statement audit   523 570

   Fees for other services   21 –

	 Minimum	lease	payments	under	operating	leases	 	 	 1,129	 133

 Impairment of receivables   792 95

 directors’ fees   394 246

 revaluation decrement   3,446 42,780

 public transport operations   279,696 153,429

 roading network   145,576 86,206

 electric trains procurement costs   41,948 –

 other operating expenses   48,883 45,441

 total other expenses   522,408 328,900

	 Fees	paid	to	the	principal	auditor	for	other	services	were	for	the	review	of	the	draft	Asset	Management	Plan.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the yeAr ended 30 June 2012 continued
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the yeAr ended 30 June 2012 continued

    Actual Actual 
    12 months to 8 months to 
    30 Jun 2012 30 Jun 2011

    $000 $000

7 other LoSSeS/(gAinS)

 Foreign exchange losses/(gains)   688 (1,255)

 Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment   7,914 684

 total losses/(gains)   8,602 (571)

8 income tAx

 components of income tax expense

 Current tax   – –

 deferred tax   922 (474)

 Income tax expense   922 (474)

 relationship between tax income expense and accounting profit  

 (deficit)/surplus before tax   (110,426) (39,937)

 tax at 28 per cent (2011: 30 per cent)   (30,919) (11,981)

 Plus/(less) tax effects of:

 Non-taxable income   – –

 Non-deductible expenditure   30,919 11,981

 tax losses not recognised   – –

 group loss offset   493 –

 deferred tax adjustment   429 (474)

 Income tax   922 (474)

  Property, plant Other Tax 
  and equipment provisions losses Total

  $000 $000 $000 $000

 deferred tax liability

 Balance at 1 July 2011 (13,264) 25 464 (12,775)

 Charged to profit and loss (433) (25) (464) (922)

 Charged to other comprehensive income 2,677 – – 2,677

 Balance at 30 June 2012 (11,020) – – (11,020)

 Balance at 1 November 2010 (10,318) – 329 (9,989)

 Charged to profit and loss 314 25 135 474

 Charged to other comprehensive income (3,260) – – (3,260)

 Balance at 30 June 2011 (13,264) 25 464 (12,775)

  Auckland transport derived tax losses of $1,762,426 during the year ended 30 June 2012 which have not been recognised as deferred 
tax assets (2011: nil). these losses will be used to offset the tax liability of other members of the Auckland Council group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the yeAr ended 30 June 2012 continued

    Actual Actual 
    30 Jun 2012 30 Jun 2011

    $000 $000

9  cASh And cASh equivALentS

  Cash at bank   2,676 2,122

  till floats   164 129

  total cash and cash equivalents   2,840 2,251

 the carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates their fair value.

  the weighted average effective interest rate for cash and cash equivalents is 2.5% (2011 – 2.5%).

10  debtorS And other receivAbLeS

  current portion

  trade debtors   2,848 4,635

  Infringements receivable   15,005 8,779

  Amounts due from related parties – capital contribution from Auckland Council   93,999 117,469

  Amounts due from related parties – other   27,267 32,060

  Accrued income   44,569 34,617

  goods and services tax   3,532 16,606

     187,220 214,166

 Less provision for impairment of receivables   (792) (95)

     186,428 214,071

  non-current portion

  Accrued income   11,874 –

  Amounts due from related parties – other   46,000 –

     57,874 –

  total debtors and receivables   244,302 214,071

 the carrying value of debtors and other receivables approximates their fair value.

 there is no concentration of credit risk with respect to receivables as there are a large number of customers.

 the maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned above.
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   Gross Impaired Net

   $000 $000 $000

10  debtorS And other receivAbLeS (CoNtINued)

 the ageing profile of receivables at 30 June is detailed below: 

  2012

  Not past due  231,069 – 231,069

  past due 1 – 30 days  2,522 – 2,522

  past due 31 – 60 days  910 – 910

  past due 61 – 90 days  194 – 194

  past due > 90 days  10,399 (792) 9,607

    245,094 (792) 244,302

  2011

  Not past due  202,735 – 202,735

  past due 1 – 30 days  7,021 – 7,021

  past due 31 – 60 days  948 – 948

  past due 61 – 90 days  210 (4) 206

  past due > 90 days  3,252 (91) 3,161

    214,166 (95) 214,071

 All receivables greater than 30 days in age are considered to be past due.

  the provision for impairment of receivables has been calculated on an individual basis. the provision is based on a review of 
significant debtor balances. receivables are assessed as impaired due to significant financial difficulties being experienced by the 
debtor, and Auckland transport management concluding that it is remote that the overdue amounts will be recovered.

    Actual Actual

    $000 $000

  movements in the provision for impairment of receivables are as follows:

  opening balance   95 31

  Additional provisions made   792 95

  provisions reversed   (95) (27)

  receivables written-off   – (4)

  closing balance   792 95

 

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the yeAr ended 30 June 2012 continued
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    Actual Actual 
    30 Jun 2012 30 Jun 2011

    $000 $000

11  inventorieS

  spare parts for rolling stock   5,160 5,820

  other inventories at cost   – 6

  total inventories   5,160 5,826

  spare parts for rolling stock are held and managed by kiwirail on Auckland transport’s behalf.

  the carrying amount of spare parts for rolling stock is measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

  No inventories are pledged as security for liabilities.

  there have been no write downs of inventory to net realisable value. there have been no reversals of write downs.

12  other ASSetS

  prepayments   1,174 11,680

  NZtA assets held in trust   17,418 13,146

  NZtA assets held in trust transfer   (17,418) (13,146)

  total other assets   1,174 11,680

  Asset held in trust for nZ transport Agency

	 	Auckland	Transport	and	NZ	Transport	Agency	have	a	Memorandum	of	Understanding	(MOU)	covering	the	Auckland	Integrated	
Fares system (AIFs). the central system of the AIFs project, which Auckland transport is developing and NZ transport Agency  
is funding 100 per cent, will pass to NZ transport Agency as part of their national framework for automated fare collection.  
The	MOU	states	that	Auckland	Transport	will	hold	the	asset	in	trust	for	NZ	Transport	Agency	until	such	time	as	the	project	is	
completed. expenditure and funding across the twelve months ended 30 June 2012 was $4.3m (2011: eight months to 30 June 2011 
was $8.1m).

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the yeAr ended 30 June 2012 continued



Section three:  FINANCIALs ANd gLossAry102

AuCkLANd trANsport ANNuAL report 2012

    Accumulated 
    depreciation  
    and 
   Cost/ impairment Carrying 
   revaluation charges amount 
   1 July 2011 1 July 2011 1 July 2011

  2012  $000 $000 $000

13  property, pLAnt And equipment

  operational assets

  Cost or valuation

  Land  395,341 – 395,341

  Land – finance lease  12,531 – 12,531

  Buildings  181,976 (5,207) 176,769

  rolling stock  108,461 – 108,461

  Locomotive improvements  10,646 (794) 9,852

	 	Motor	vehicles	 	 1,722	 (556)	 1,166

  Computer hardware  80 (27) 53

  Furniture and fittings  283 (81) 202

  plant and equipment  18,581 (1,865) 16,716

  Wharves  42,954 – 42,954

  Bus stations and shelters  30,363 – 30,363

  train stations  197,806 (3,466) 194,340

    1,000,744 (11,996) 988,748

  infrastructural assets

  Cost or valuation

  Land  5,208,666 – 5,208,666

  roading  6,351,829 – 6,351,829

  street gardens  13,256 (295) 12,961

    11,573,751 (295) 11,573,456

  Works under construction  361,415 – 361,415

  total property, plant and equipment  12,935,910 (12,291) 12,923,619

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the yeAr ended 30 June 2012 continued
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        Accumulated 
   Current     depreciation 
   year Current    and 
 Current Current transfers year Current  Cost/ impairment Carrying 
 year year on asset impairment year Revaluation revaluation charges amount 
 additions disposals completion charges depreciation surplus/(loss) 30 Jun 2012 30 Jun 2012 30 Jun 2012

 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

 

 83,182 (6,254) 2,741 – – (1,340) 473,670 – 473,670

 – – – – – 684 13,215 – 13,215

 13,305 (7,520) 11,699 – (8,147) 44,494 230,699 (99) 230,600

 – – 160 – (21,265) – 108,621 (21,265) 87,356

 – – – – (1,191) – 10,646 (1,985) 8,661

 – – – – (567) – 1,722 (1,123) 599

 – – 2,145 – (347) – 2,225 (374) 1,851

 – – 17 – (121) – 300 (202) 98

 – – 507 – (2,600) – 19,088 (4,465) 14,623

 830 – 1,433 – (1,636) (14,498) 29,083 – 29,083

 – – 913 – (830) – 31,276 (830) 30,446

 – – 34,727 – (5,276) 160,609 384,400 – 384,400

 97,317 (13,774) 54,342 – (41,980) 189,949 1,304,945 (30,343) 1,274,602

 

 8,947 (4,095) 52,182 – – – 5,265,700 – 5,265,700

 35,278 – 313,154 – (182,257) – 6,700,261 (182,257) 6,518,004

 19 – – – (442) – 13,275 (737) 12,538

 44,244 (4,095) 365,336 – (182,699) – 11,979,236 (182,994) 11,796,242

 557,138 – (419,678) – – – 498,875 – 498,875

  698,699 (17,869) – – (224,679) 189,949 13,783,056 (213,337) 13,569,719

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the yeAr ended 30 June 2012 continued
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the yeAr ended 30 June 2012 continued

    Accumulated 
    depreciation  
    and 
   Cost/ impairment Carrying 
   revaluation charges amount 
   1 Nov 2010 1 Nov 2010 1 Nov 2010

  2011  $000 $000 $000

13  property, pLAnt And equipment

  operational assets

  Cost or valuation

  Land  393,719 – 393,719

  Land – finance lease  12,531 – 12,531

  Buildings  133,535 – 133,535

  rolling stock  153,207 – 153,207

  Locomotive improvements  10,646 – 10,646

	 	Motor	vehicles	 	 1,722	 –	 1,722

  Computer hardware  80 – 80

  Furniture and fittings  283 – 283

  plant and equipment  18,168 – 18,168

  Wharves  29,614 – 29,614

  Bus stations and shelters  24,911 – 24,911

  train stations  197,806 – 197,806

    976,222 – 976,222

  infrastructural assets

  Cost or valuation

  Land  5,173,856 – 5,173,856

  roading  5,344,508 – 5,344,508

  street gardens  13,256 – 13,256

    10,531,620 – 10,531,620

  Works under construction  325,094 – 325,094

  total property, plant and equipment  11,832,936 – 11,832,936
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the yeAr ended 30 June 2012 continued

        Accumulated 
   Current     depreciation 
   year Current    and 
 Current Current transfers year Current  Cost/ impairment Carrying 
 year year on asset impairment year Revaluation revaluation charges amount 
 additions disposals completion charges depreciation surplus/(loss) 30 Jun 2011 30 Jun 2011 30 Jun 2011

 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

 – – 1,622 – – – 395,341 – 395,341

 – – – – – – 12,531 – 12,531

 – – 48,441 – (5,207) – 181,976 (5,207) 176,769

 – – 11,783 – (13,749) (42,780) 108,461 – 108,461

 – – – – (794) – 10,646 (794) 9,852

 – – – – (556) – 1,722 (556) 1,166

 – – – – (27) – 80 (27) 53

 – – – – (81) – 283 (81) 202

 – – 413 – (1,865) – 18,581 (1,865) 16,716

 – – 924 – (559) 12,975 42,954 – 42,954

 – – 1,327 – (452) 4,577 30,363 – 30,363

 – – – – (3,466) – 197,806 (3,466) 194,340

 – – 64,510 – (26,756) (25,228) 1,000,744 (11,996) 988,748

 

 

 31,785 – 3,025 – – – 5,208,666 – 5,208,666

 5,815 – 181,501 – (116,336) 936,341 6,351,829 – 6,351,829

 – – – – (295) – 13,256 (295) 12,961

 37,600 – 184,526 – (116,631) 936,341 11,573,751 (295) 11,573,456

 286,041 (684) (249,036) – – – 361,415 – 361,415

 323,641 (684) – – (143,387) 911,113 12,935,910 (12,291) 12,923,619
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13  property, pLAnt And equipment (CoNtINued)

 property, plant and equipment (Auckland council-owned)

  the following property, plant, and equipment are legally owned by Auckland Council but managed and controlled by  
Auckland transport.

 1.   parking – includes buildings, at grade (land) and park-and-rides.

 2.   roads – includes land under roads, land intended for roads (land acquired prior to 1 Nov 2010), shaping, formation, foundation, 
surface, kerbing and channelling, drainage under roads, footpaths, lighting, signage, bridges, crossings, islands, minor  
structures (including railings and retaining walls), traffic facilities, traffic signals and shoulders. partial land acquired for roads  
after 1 Nov 2010.

  the above Auckland Council-owned property, plant, and equipment are included as part of Auckland transport’s property,  
plant, and equipment. Although legal title has not been transferred, Auckland transport has assumed all the normal risk and  
rewards of ownership.

 restrictions on Auckland council-owned property, plant and equipment

 Disposal

  under the Local government (Auckland Council) Act 2009 paragraph 48 section 2, Auckland transport must inform Auckland 
Council, in writing, of its decision to dispose of land not required for a road under section 345 of the Local government Act 1974, 
and the council must dispose of the land in accordance with the requirements of the Local government Act 1974.

 Acquisition

  under the Local government (Auckland Council) Act 2009 paragraph 48 section 4, Auckland transport must inform Auckland 
Council, in writing, of its decision to apply for compulsory acquisition of any land, or the deemed agreement, as the case may be, 
and any land taken or acquired as a result will be legally vested in Auckland Council but will be recognised in Auckland transport’s 
financial statements.

 revaluation

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the yeAr ended 30 June 2012 continued

 
Asset class

Date of 
revaluation

Valuation 
amount 

$000

Basis of 
revaluation

 
Valuer Company

 
Valuer name

operational land 
and building

30 June 2012 650,604 Fair value with 
the approaches 
being	Market,	
Income and Cost

Bayleys Valuations Limited
darroch Limited
Beca Carter Hollings & Ferner Limited
telferyoung (Auckland) Limited
opus International Consultants Limited

John darroch
kerry stewart
Nigel Hoskin
Lewis esplin
priyani de silva-Currie

train stations 30 June 2012 384,400 depreciated 
replacement cost

opus International Consultants Limited priyani de silva-Currie

Wharf structures 30 June 2012 29,083 depreciated 
replacement cost

opus International Consultants Limited priyani de silva-Currie

roads, parking 
(excluding land 
and buildings) 
and wharves 
structures

30 June 2011 6,351,828 depreciated 
replacement cost

ANA group Limited Amar singh

Bus stations and 
shelters

30 June 2011 24,911 depreciated 
replacement cost

ANA group Limited Amar singh

rolling stock 
carriages

30 June 2011 108,461 depreciated 
replacement cost

Halcrow pacific pty (Australia) Aaron smith
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13  property, pLAnt And equipment (CoNtINued)

valuation significant assumptions and estimates

Fair value of property, plant and equipment is determined based on the best available market evidence, including current market 
selling	prices	for	the	same	or	similar	assets.	Market	evidence	is	available	and	used	for	the	non-specialised	land	and	buildings,	which	
include commercial and general purpose buildings for which there is a secondary market.

Where there is no available market evidence, the asset’s fair value is measured at its market buying price, the best indicator of which 
is depreciated replacement cost.

the depreciated replacement cost is used to revalue specialised buildings (designed for a specific limited purpose), roading and 
public transport assets used in the delivery of Auckland transport’s services. depreciated replacement cost for these types of assets 
is based on the ‘incremental optimised replacement cost’. optimised replacement cost is the minimum cost, in the normal course of 
business, to replace the existing asset with a technologically modern equivalent asset with the same economic benefits, adjusting for 
any overdesign, overcapacity and redundant components. Incremental optimisation means that optimisation is limited to the extent 
that optimisation can occur in the normal course of business using commercially available technology.

the depreciated replacement cost valuation reflected above is calculated based on the following estimates and assumptions:

•	 	Railway	station	assets	with	unlimited	engineering	lives	have	been	adjusted	to	have	a	typical	useful	life	of	60	years	or	less	reflecting	
the rate of change and obsolescence in the environment for each elemental value

•	 	Wharves	assets	typical	useful	life	has	been	estimated	at	100	years	or	less	at	an	elemental	level,	reflecting	the	marine	environment,	
rate of change and obsolescence, loadings, and the predominance of concrete and steel structural elements

•	 	Estimating	the	unit	rate	for	construction	of	roading	assets:	The	most	current	contracted	unit	rates	(including	rates	agreed	by	
legacy councils) for road construction have been used. Where there is no current contracted unit rate information available, the 
most recent rates are used indexed for the impact of inflation

•	 	Assumptions	on	the	remaining	useful	life	over	which	the	asset	will	be	depreciated:	These	assumptions	are	based	on	the	age,	
condition information held on these assets and the asset’s future service potential. For roading assets these assumptions can be 
affected by local conditions such as ground type, weather patterns and road usage

•	 	Rolling	stock	replacement	values	are	based	on	price	quotations	of	modern	equivalent	assets	with	allowance	for	age,	asset	
deterioration, configuration and gauge

•	 	Assumptions	on	rail	rolling	stock	useful	lives	have	been	based	on	an	expected	vehicle	replacement	programme.	The	programme	
defines the expected economic and/or physical lives of the different vehicle types in future years that align with the receipt and 
commissioning of an anticipated fleet of electric trains entering service and in meeting the expected operational demand of the 
Auckland rail lines. demand has been modelled based on the patronage numbers observed over an extended period adjusted 
for assumptions on variables such as population growth and fuel prices. A new fleet of 57 three-car electric trains is expected to 
start being fully operational in Auckland between 2014-2016

•	 	If	useful	lives	do	not	reflect	the	actual	consumption	of	the	benefits	of	the	assets,	then	Auckland	Transport	could	be	over	or	under	
estimating the annual depreciation charge recognised as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income. to minimise 
this risk, asset useful lives have been determined with reference to the external industry guidance and have been adjusted for 
local conditions based on past experience. Asset inspection, deterioration, and condition modelling are also carried out regularly 
as part of asset management activities, which provides further assurance over useful life estimates. 

All other asset classes are measured at depreciated historical cost, as a surrogate for fair value.

Additional disclosures

the revaluation increase of $161m for rail stations includes an increase of $154m for Britomart station.

Auckland	Transport	and	NZ	Transport	Agency	have	signed	a	Memorandum	of	Understanding	in	June	2012	for	the	transfer	of	sections	
of state Highways from NZ transport Agency to Auckland Council as local roads under Auckland transport control and management 
with value estimated at between $500m and $550m. As this transaction did not occur during this reporting period it has been 
included in note 29 events subsequent to balance date. 

Asset classes have been expanded to provide more detail, prior year comparatives have been restated accordingly.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the yeAr ended 30 June 2012 continued
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    Accumulated 
    amortisation  
    and 
    impairment Carrying 
   Cost charges amount 
   1 Jul 2011 1 Jul 2011 1 Jul 2011

  2012  $000 $000 $000

14  intAngibLe ASSetS

  software  2,228 (686) 1,542

  operating lease  21,420 (227) 21,193

    23,648 (913) 22,735

  Works under construction  3,977 – 3,977

  total intangible assets  27,625 (913) 26,712

  there are no restrictions over the title of Auckland transport’s intangible assets; nor are any intangible assets pledged as security  
for liabilities.

  the operating lease is for the land at each of the railway station sites along the Auckland passenger rail network utilised by  
Auckland transport. the operating lease value is being amortised over the remaining portion of the 63 year life of the underlying 
lease. the lease is valued at deemed cost.

    Accumulated 
    amortisation  
    and 
    impairment Carrying 
   Cost charges amount 
   1 Nov 2010 1 Nov 2010 1 Nov 2010

  2011  $000 $000 $000

14  intAngibLe ASSetS

 software  2,228 – 2,228

 operating lease  21,420 – 21,420

    23,648 – 23,648

 Works under construction  1,673 – 1,673

 total intangible assets  25,321 – 25,321

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the yeAr ended 30 June 2012 continued
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        Accumulated 
   Current     amortisation 
   year Current    and 
 Current Current transfers year Current   impairment Carrying 
 year year on asset impairment year  Cost charges amount 
 additions disposals completion charges amortisation  30 Jun 2012 30 Jun 2012 30 Jun 2012

 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000  $000 $000 $000

 – – 6,742 – (1,779)  8,970 (2,465) 6,505

 – – – – (340)  21,420 (567) 20,853

 – – 6,742 – (2,119)  30,390 (3,032) 27,358

 6,249 – (6,742) – –  3,483 – 3,483

 6,249 – – – (2,119)  33,873 (3,032) 30,841

  there are no restrictions over the title of Auckland transport’s intangible assets; nor are any intangible assets pledged as security  
for liabilities.

  the operating lease is for the land at each of the railway station sites along the Auckland passenger rail network utilised by  
Auckland transport. the operating lease value is being amortised over the remaining portion of the 63 year life of the underlying 
lease. the lease is valued at deemed cost.

        Accumulated 
   Current     amortisation 
   year Current    and 
 Current Current transfers year Current   impairment Carrying 
 year year on asset impairment year  Cost charges amount 
 additions disposals completion charges amortisation  30 Jun 2011 30 Jun 2011 30 Jun 2011

 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000  $000 $000 $000

 – – – – (686)  2,228 (686) 1,542

 – – – – (227)  21,420 (227) 21,193

 – – – – (913)  23,648 (913) 22,735

 2,304 – – – –  3,977 – 3,977

 2,304 – – – (913)  27,625 (913) 26,712

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the yeAr ended 30 June 2012 continued
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    Actual Actual 
    30 Jun 2012 30 Jun 2011

    $000 $000

15  creditorS And other pAyAbLeS

  Creditors   48,605 114,415

  Accrued expenses   112,445 41,946

  Amounts due to related parties   14,836 25,681

  Income in advance   1,047 437

     176,933 182,479

  Creditors and other payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 20-day terms. therefore, the carrying value of 
creditors and other payables approximates their fair value.

16  empLoyee entitLementS

  current portion

  Accrued salaries and wages   1,555 1,032

  Annual leave   5,937 5,273

  sick leave   266 266

  Long service leave   73 121

  total current portion   7,831 6,692

  non-current portion

  retirement gratuities   383 410

  Long service leave   517 548

  total non-current portion   900 958

  total employee entitlements   8,731 7,650

17  derivAtive FinAnciAL inStrumentS

  current liability portion

  Forward foreign exchange contracts – not hedge accounted   975 2,561

  Forward foreign exchange contracts – hedge accounted   2,825 –

  total current derivative financial instruments   3,800 2,561

  non-current liability portion

  Forward foreign exchange contracts – not hedge accounted   – 171

  Forward foreign exchange contracts – hedge accounted   16,629 –

  Interest rate swaps – not hedge accounted   34,034 –

  total non-current derivative financial instruments   50,663 171

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the yeAr ended 30 June 2012 continued
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    Actual Actual 
    30 Jun 2012 30 Jun 2011

    $000 $000

17  derivAtive FinAnciAL inStrumentS (CoNtINued)

  Forward foreign exchange contracts

  the fair values of forward foreign exchange contracts have been determined using a discounted cash flows valuation technique 
based on quoted market prices. the inputs into the valuation model are from independently sourced market parameters such as 
currency	rates.	Most	market	parameters	are	implied	from	forward	foreign	exchange	contract	prices.

 Forward foreign exchange contracts – not hedged accounted

  the notional principal amount of outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts that were not hedge accounted was NZd $3.4m 
(June 2011: NZd $14.1m). the foreign currency principal amount was eur 1.5m (June 2011: usd 2.3m and eur 4.8m). the loss on 
their revaluation of $1.0m (2011: $1.3m gain) has been recorded in the net surplus/(deficit).

 Forward foreign exchange contracts – hedge accounted

  the notional principal amount of outstanding forward foreign exchange contract cash flow hedges was NZd $379.6m. the foreign 
currency principal amount was usd 270.9m. these cash flow hedges have been accounted for as effective and the loss of $19.5m on 
their revaluation has been transferred to the cash flow hedge reserve within equity.

 interest rate swaps

  the fair values of interest rate swaps have been determined by calculating the expected cash flows under the terms of the swaps and 
discounting these values to present value. the inputs into the valuation model are from independently sourced market parameters 
such	as	interest	rate	yield	curves.	Most	market	parameters	are	implied	from	instrument	prices.

  the notional principal amount of the outstanding interest rate swap contracts was $465m. At 30 June 2012 the fixed interest rates 
of cash flow hedge interest rate swaps varied from 4.8% to 5.4%. the loss on their revaluation of $34m has been recorded in the net 
surplus/(deficit).

  gains and losses on interest rate swap contracts, recognised in the hedging reserve in equity as at 30 June 2012 (note 19), will be 
released to the surplus or deficit when the gain or loss is realised.

  the interest rate swaps have been arranged with various banks through Auckland Council.

18  borrowingS

  Current loans from Auckland Council   448 –

  Non-current loans from Auckland Council   112,121 –

     112,569 –

  Weighted average cost of funds on total borrowings   4.99% –

 Auckland transport manages its borrowings in accordance with its treasury policy. there was no significant changes to the treasury  
 policy during the year. Auckland transport was fully compliant with its treasury policy at year end.

 Auckland Council provides security for Auckland transports borrowings. these borrowings fund the electric train project.

 Auckland transport’s debt of $112.6m is issued at fixed rates of interest ranging from 4.20% to 5.78%.

  the fair value of these loans is $130.9m. the fair value is based on cash flows discounted using a rate based on the borrowing rates 
ranging from 4.20% to 5.78%. the carrying amounts of borrowings repayable within one year approximate their fair value, as the 
impact of discounting is not significant.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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    Actual Actual 
    30 Jun 2012 30 Jun 2011

    $000 $000

19  equity

  contributed capital

  opening balance   12,068,982 –

  Capital contribution from ArtA on 1 November   – 365,294

  Capital contribution from ArtNL and group on 1 November   – 7,219

  Capital contribution from disestablished councils on 1 November   – 11,501,092

  Contributed capital on 1 November   12,068,982 11,873,605

  Contributed capital from Auckland Council during the period   444,898 195,377

  Closing balance   12,513,880 12,068,982

  retained (loss)/surplus 

  opening balance   (39,463) –

  deficit for the period   (111,348) (39,463)

  Closing balance   (150,811) (39,463)

  Asset revaluation reserve

  opening balance   950,633 –

  Valuation gains taken to equity   193,395 953,893

  deferred tax on revaluation   2,677 (3,260)

  Closing balance   1,146,705 950,633

 property revaluation reserves for each asset class consist of:

 Operational assets

 Land – finance lease   684 –

 Buildings   44,494 –

 Wharves   – 9,715

 Bus stations and shelters   4,577 4,577

 train stations   160,609 –

 Infrastructural assets

 roading   936,341 936,341

 Closing balance   1,146,705 950,633

 cash flow hedge reserve

 Fair value losses during the period   (19,454) –

 Closing balance   (19,454) –

 total other reserves   1,127,251 950,633

 total equity   13,490,320 12,980,152

Notes to the Financial Statements
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    Actual Actual 
    30 Jun 2012 30 Jun 2011

    $000 $000

20   reconciLiAtion oF net (deFicit)/SurpLuS AFter tAx to net cASh FLow  
From operAting ActivitieS

  deficit after tax   (111,348) (39,463)

  Add/(less) non-cash items:

  depreciation and amortisation expense   226,798 144,300

  Vested assets   (24,037) (37,600)

  Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment   7,914 684

  revaluation decrement   3,446 42,780

  Foreign exchange gains   (1,757) (1,255)

  Loss on interest rate swaps   34,034 –

  Income tax   922 (474)

  grant from Auckland Council for electric trains project   (46,000) –

  Non-current accrued income   (11,874) –

  Add/(less) movements in balance sheet items:

  debtors and other receivables   4,173 (25,653)

  Inventories   666 91

  Creditors and other payables   (28,424) 112,264

  employee benefits payable   1,081 1,779

  other assets   10,506 (171)

  net cash from operating activities   66,100 197,282

21  cApitAL commitmentS And operAting LeASeS

  capital commitments

  property, plant and equipment   574,953 367,218

  Capital commitments represent capital expenditure contracted for at balance date but not yet incurred.

  there are no capital commitments for intangibles.

  non-lease operating commitments

  Not later than one year   52,562 147,823

  Later than one year and not later than five years   1,998 1,082

  total non-lease operating commitments   54,560 148,905

 operating leases as lessee

  Auckland transport leases computer equipment in the normal course of its business. these leases have a non-cancellable term of 
36 months. the future aggregate minimum lease payments payable under non-cancellable leases are as follows:

  Not later than one year   1,490 277

  Later than one year and not later than five years   3,927 420

  Later than five years   333 –

  total non-cancellable operating leases   5,750 697

  Leases can be renewed at Auckland transport’s option, with rents set by reference to current market rates for items of equivalent age 
and condition. there is no option to purchase the assets at the end of the lease term.

 there are no restrictions placed on Auckland transport by any of the leasing arrangements.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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22  contingencieS

  contingent liabilities

  Litigation

 Auckland transport has received a claim in relation to the Northern Busway and the associated changes to the roading network.  

  Auckland transport is working to resolve this claim with its solicitors. part of this claim has been settled, no further liability has been 
recognised in relation to this claim as any further amount is uncertain.

 there are no other material contingent liabilities.

 contingent assets

 there are no contingent assets as at 30 June 2012.

    Actual Actual 
    12 months to 8 months to 
    30 Jun 2012 30 Jun 2011

    $000 $000

23  reLAted pArty trAnSActionS

  Auckland transport is a council-controlled organisation of Auckland Council. Auckland transport receives a significant amount of 
funding from Auckland Council to deliver its objectives as specified in Auckland Council’s Long-term plan.

 The following transactions were carried out with related parties during the year:

  Auckland council

   purchase of good and services from Auckland Council   24,398 29,088

   sale of goods and services to Auckland Council   5,930 7,850

   grants received from Auckland Council   323,215 150,792

   Accounts payable to Auckland Council   12,503 23,430

   Accounts receivable from Auckland Council   167,189 149,017

   Capital contribution from Auckland Council   444,898 195,377

   Asset held for sale to Auckland Council   – 1,629

   Loans payable to Auckland Council   112,569 –

   electric trains procurement costs   41,948 –

   Interest expense to Auckland Council   2,829 –

   Interest payable to Auckland Council   1,107 –

   realised loss on interest rate swaps   773 –

   unrealised loss on revaluation of interest rate swaps   34,034 –

   realised loss on foreign exchange contracts – operating expenditure   2,446 –

   realised loss on foreign exchange contracts – capital expenditure   524 –

   unrealised gain/(loss) on revaluation of foreign exchange contracts   1,757 (1,256)

   Interest rate swap liabilities   34,034 –

   Foreign exchange hedge liabilities – hedge accounted   19,454 –

   Foreign exchange hedge liabilities – not hedge accounted   975 2,732

   Cash flow hedge reserve   (19,454) –

Notes to the Financial Statements
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      Actual Actual 
      12 months to 8 months to 
      30 Jun 2012 30 Jun 2011

    $000 $000

23  reLAted pArty trAnSActionS (CoNtINued)

  watercare Services Limited

   purchase of goods and services from Watercare services Limited   415 188

   sale of goods and services to Watercare services Limited   165 117

   Accounts payable to Watercare services Limited   19 29

   Accounts receivable from Watercare services Limited   50 72

  Auckland tourism, events and economic development Limited

   purchase of goods and services from Auckland tourism,  events and economic development Limited – 171

   sale of goods and services to Auckland tourism,  events and economic development Limited  273 390

   Accounts payable to Auckland tourism, events and economic development Limited  – 174

   Accounts receivable from Auckland tourism, events and economic development Limited  – 434

  Auckland council property Limited

   purchase of goods and services from Auckland Council property Limited   1,101 –

   Accounts payable to Auckland Council property Limited   463 –

  Auckland waterfront development Agency Limited

   purchase of goods and services from Auckland Waterfront development Agency Limited  505 3,031

   sale of goods and services to Auckland Waterfront development Agency Limited  482 5

   Accounts payable to Auckland Waterfront development Agency Limited   467 1,951

   Accounts receivable from Auckland Waterfront development Agency Limited   27 6

  manukau beautification charitable trust

	 	 	 Purchase	of	goods	and	services	from	Manukau	Beautification	Charitable	Trust	 	 	 344	 208

	 	 	 Accounts	payable	to	Manukau	Beautification	Charitable	Trust	 	 	 30	 97

  regional Facilities Auckland Limited

   purchase of goods and services from regional Facilities Auckland Limited   258 –

   Accounts payable to regional Facilities Auckland Limited   247 –

 key management personnel

 key management personnel include all Board members, the Chief executive and other senior management personnel.

  during the year key management personnel, as part of a normal customer relationship, were involved in minor transactions with 
Auckland transport (such as parking or public transport).

  during the year Auckland transport received funding from the NZ transport Agency (NZtA), of which Auckland transport Board 
member geoff dangerfield is Chief executive. the funding from NZtA occurred as a result of normal NZtA funding arrangements 
for approved activities. the value of NZtA funding received by Auckland transport for the twelve months to 30 June 2012 totalled 
$262m (2011 – eight months to 30 June 2011 totalled $198m). there was a balance of $54m outstanding receivables at year-end 
(2011 – $34m). Note 12 discloses an asset held in trust for NZtA.

  directors have interests in related parties of Auckland transport, as disclosed in the directors’ profiles within the governance section 
of this annual report. Any transactions with these related parties have been supplied or received in the normal course of business 
and on normal commercial terms.

 Auckland transport does not provide any post-employment benefits to key management personnel.
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    Actual Actual 
    12 months to 8 months to 
    30 Jun 2012 30 Jun 2011

    $ $

23  reLAted pArty trAnSActionS (CoNtINued)

  key management personnel compensation

  salaries and other short-term employee benefits   2,540,577 1,210,532

  post-employee benefits   – –

  other long-term benefits   – –

  termination benefits   – –

  total key management personnel compensation   2,540,577 1,210,532

 No provision has been required, nor any expense recognised, for impairment of receivables from related parties.

24  boArd member remunerAtion

  the total value of remuneration paid or payable to each Board member during the period was:

	 	Mark	Ford	(Chair)	 	 	 –	 17,500

  philippa dunphy (deputy Chair)   66,625 44,417

  geoff dangerfield   – –

  Christine Fletcher   52,500 35,000

	 	Michael	Lee	 	 	 52,500	 35,000

  paul Lockey   60,375 35,000

  dr Ian parton    57,094 13,125

  rabin rabindran   52,500 35,000

	 	Mike	Williams	 	 	 52,500	 30,625

  total Board member remuneration   394,094 245,667

	 	Mark	Ford	is	entitled	to	$105,000	per	annum	in	Director	fees	however	he	has	chosen	not	to	accept	any	payment	as	Chair	of	the	
Board of Auckland transport since January 2011.

 dr Ian parton did not accept director fees while he was also employed by Watercare.

  geoff dangerfield is an NZtA appointee on the Board of Auckland transport. under the terms of establishment legislation he does 
not receive any remuneration.

  paul Lockey and Ian parton received additional remuneration, in line with Auckland Council policy, for their roles as Chairs of Board 
sub-committees.

  there have been no payments made to committee members appointed by the Board who are not Board members during the 
financial year.

  Auckland transport has provided a deed of indemnity to directors for certain activities undertaken in the performance of Auckland 
transport’s functions.

  Auckland transport has effected directors’ and officers’ Liability and professional Indemnity insurance cover during the financial year 
in respect of the liability of costs of Board members and employees.

 No Board members received compensation or other benefits in relation to cessation.
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25  empLoyee remunerAtion

  the following section shows the number of Auckland transport employees who were paid $100,000 and above for the twelve months 
ending 30 June 2012 (2011: eight months ending 30 June 2011).

 
     Number of employees Number of employees 
     12 months to 8 months to
     30 Jun 2012 30 Jun 2011

  $100,000 - $109,999  52 12

  $110,000 - $119,999  32 5

  $120,000 - $129,999  20 6

  $130,000 - $139,999  16 –

  $140,000 - $149,999  18 4

  $150,000 - $159,999  9 –

  $160,000 - $169,999  11 2

  $170,000 - $179,999  1 –

  $180,000 - $189,999  7 2

  $190,000 - $199,999  3 –

  $200,000 - $209,999  – 1

  $220,000 - $229,999  4 –

  $230,000 - $239,999  1 1

  $250,000 - $259,999  3 –

  $280,000 - $289,999  1 –

  $300,000 - $309,999  1 –

  $320,000 - $329,999  1 –

  $340,000 - $349,999  – 1

  $570,000 - $579,999  1 –

    Actual Actual 
    30 Jun 2012 30 Jun 2011

    $000 $000

26   other FinAnciAL inStrument diScLoSureS

26a cAtegorieS oF FinAnciAL inStrumentS

   the carrying amounts of financial instruments in each of the NZ IAs 39 categories are as follows:

   Financial assets

   Loans and receivables 

   Cash and cash equivalents   2,840 2,251

   debtors and other receivables   244,302 214,071

     247,142 216,322

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the yeAr ended 30 June 2012 continued
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the yeAr ended 30 June 2012 continued

    Actual Actual 
    30 Jun 2012 30 Jun 2011

    $000 $000

26   other FinAnciAL inStrument diScLoSureS (CoNtINued)

26a cAtegorieS oF FinAnciAL inStrumentS (CoNtINued)

   Financial liabilities

   Fair value through surplus or deficit

   Forward foreign exchange contracts – not hedge accounted   975 2,561

   Interest rate swaps – not hedge accounted   34,034 –

       35,009 2,561

   Derivatives that are hedge accounted

   Forward foreign exchange contracts – hedge accounted   19,454 –

       19,454 –

   Financial liabilities at amortised costs

   Creditors and other payables   176,933 182,479

   Borrowings   112,569 –

       289,502 182,479

26b FAir vALue hierArchy diScLoSureS

   For those instruments recognised at fair value in the statement of financial position, fair values are determined according to the 
following hierarchy:

	 	 •	 Quoted	market	price	(level	1)	–	Financial	instruments	with	quoted	prices	for	identical	instruments	in	active	markets

	 	 •	 	Valuation	technique	using	observable	inputs	(level	2)	–	Financial	instruments	with	quoted	prices	for	similar	instruments	in	active	
market or quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using models 
where all significant inputs are observable

	 	 •	 	Valuation	techniques	with	significant	non-observable	inputs	(level	3)	–	Financial	instruments	valued	using	models	where	one	or	
more significant inputs are not observable.

   the following table analyses the basis of the valuation of classes of financial instruments measured at fair value in the statement of 
financial position.

      Valuation Significant
     Quoted technique non- 
     market Observable observable 
    Total price inputs inputs

   2012 Note $000 $000 $000 $000

   Financial liabilities

   derivative financial instruments 17 54,463 – 54,463 –

   2011

   Financial liabilities

   derivative financial instruments 17 2,732 – 2,732 –

 there were no transfers between the different levels of the fair value hierarchy.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the yeAr ended 30 June 2012 continued

26   other FinAnciAL inStrument diScLoSureS (CoNtINued)

26c FinAnciAL inStrument riSkS

   Auckland transport’s activities expose it to a variety of financial instrument risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity 
risk. Auckland transport has a series of policies to manage the risks associated with financial instruments and seeks to minimise 
exposure from financial instruments. these policies do not allow any transactions that are speculative in nature to be entered into.

  market risk

  Price risk

   price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices. Auckland transport 
is not exposed to any significant price risk.

  Fair value interest rate risk

   Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. 
Borrowings issued at fixed rates of interest expose Auckland transport to fair value interest rate risk.

   Auckland transport’s borrowings are all issued at fixed rates as the main objective of Auckland transport’s interest rate risk 
management is to reduce uncertainty around interest expense as interest rates change.

  Cash flow interest rate risk

   Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the cash flows from a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates. Auckland transport is not exposed to any significant cash flow interest rate risk.

  Currency risk

   Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign 
exchange rates. From time to time Auckland transport purchases goods and services overseas which require it to enter into 
transactions denominated in foreign currencies. As a result of these activities, exposure to currency risk arises. 

   It is Auckland transport’s policy to manage foreign currency risks arising from contractual commitments and liabilities by entering 
into forward foreign exchange contracts to manage the foreign currency risk exposure.

  Sensitivity analysis

   the potential effect on the surplus or deficit and equity (excluding retained earnings) for reasonably possible market movements, 
with all other variables held constant, at balance date are as follows:

  Foreign exchange risk 

       NZ $000 NZ $000 NZ $000 NZ $000 
       -5% -5% +5% +5%
   2012  Profit Other equity Profit Other equity

   Forward foreign exchange contracts – hedge accounted

      usd derivatives  – 17,725 – (18,263)

   Forward foreign exchange contracts – not hedge accounted

      usd derivatives  – – – –

      eur derivatives  122 – (118) –

       122 – (118) –

   2011

   Forward foreign exchange contracts – not hedge accounted 

      usd derivatives  176 – (156) –

      eur derivatives  811 – (680) –

       987 – (836) –
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26   other FinAnciAL inStrument diScLoSureS (CoNtINued)

26c FinAnciAL inStrument riSkS (CoNtINued)

  Interest rate risk 

       NZ $000 NZ $000 NZ $000 NZ $000 
       -100bps -100bps +100bps +100bps
   2012  Profit Other equity Profit Other equity

   Interest rate risk   

   Interest rate swaps – not hedge accounted  (37,734) – 33,524 –

 Explanation of foreign exchange risk sensitivity

  the foreign exchange sensitivity is based on a reasonable possible movement in foreign exchange rates, with all other variables 
held constant, measured as a percentage movement in the foreign exchange rate of -5%/+5%.

 Explanation of interest rate risk sensitivity

  the interest rate sensitivity is based on a reasonable possible movement in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, 
measured as a basis points (bps) movement. For example, a decrease in 50 bps is equivalent to a decrease in interest rates of 0.5%.

 credit risk

 Credit risk is the risk that a third party will default on its obligation to Auckland transport, causing it to incur a loss.

  In the normal course of business, Auckland transport is exposed to credit risk from cash, debtors and other receivables and 
derivative financial instrument assets. For each of these, the maximum credit exposure is best represented by the carrying amount 
in the statement of financial position.

 Auckland transport has no collateral or other credit enhancements for financial instruments that give rise to credit risk.

 Credit quality of financial assets

  the credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to standard & poor’s 
credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty default rates:

         Actual Actual 
         30 Jun 2012 30 Jun 2011

        $000 $000

   counterparties with credit ratings

   Cash at bank

   AA   – 2,122

   AA-   2,676 –

   counterparties without credit ratings

   Debtors and other receivables

   existing counterparty with no defaults in the past   186,428 214,071

   existing counterparty with defaults in the past   – –

      186,428 214,071

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the yeAr ended 30 June 2012 continued
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26   other FinAnciAL inStrument diScLoSureS (CoNtINued)

26c FinAnciAL inStrument riSkS (CoNtINued)

 Liquidity risk

 Management of liquidity risk

  Liquidity risk is the risk that Auckland transport will encounter difficulty raising liquid funds to meet commitments as they fall due. 
prudent liability risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the ability to close out market positions.

 Auckland transport manages liquidity risk by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flow requirements.

 Contractual maturity analysis of financial liabilities, excluding borrowings

  the table below analyses Auckland transport’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period  
at the balance date to the contractual maturity date. the amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

         Carrying Contractual Less than 6-12 Less than 
         amount cash flows 6 months months 1 year

     2012   NZ$000 NZ$000 NZ$000 NZ$000 NZ$000

   trade and other payables   176,933 176,933 176,933 –  –

   Forward foreign exchange contracts   

   –  outflow   –  382,964 45,284 11,929 325,751

   –  inflow   –  382,964 45,284 11,929 325,751

     2011

   trade and other payables   182,479 182,479 182,479 –  –

   Forward foreign exchange contracts

   –  outflow   –  14,092 2,563 10,681 848

   –  inflow   –  14,092 2,563 10,681 848

 Contractual maturity analysis of borrowings

  the table below analyses Auckland transport’s borrowings into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the 
balance date to the contractual maturity date. the amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows and include 
principal payments of $112.6m and interest payments of $98.7m.

       Carrying Contractual Less than 11-20 21-30 31-40 41-50 
       amount cash flows 11 years years years years years

     2012 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

    Borrowings 112,569 211,322 96,710 38,405 38,405 24,573 13,229

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the yeAr ended 30 June 2012 continued
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27  cApitAL mAnAgement

   Auckland transport’s capital is its equity, which comprises contributed capital, retained earnings and revaluation reserves. equity is 
represented by net assets.

   Auckland transport is subject to financial management and accountability provisions of the Local government (Auckland Council) 
Act 2009, which imposes restrictions in relation to borrowings and the use of derivatives.

   Auckland transport manages its equity as a by-product of prudently managing revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities and general 
financial dealings to ensure Auckland transport effectively achieves its objectives and purpose, while remaining a going concern.

28  eStAbLiShment oF AuckLAnd trAnSport

 	 	Auckland	Transport,	together	with	the	Auckland	Council	group,	was	formed	as	a	result	of	the	Local	Government	(Tamaki	Makaurau	
Reorganisation)	Act	2009	that	was	enacted	23	May	2009.	The	legislation	provided	for	the	dissolution	of	local	authorities	in	the	
Auckland	Region	on	31	October	2010	(Auckland	City	Council,	Manukau	City	Council,	Papakura	District	Council,	Franklin	District	
Council, North shore City Council, rodney district Council, Waitakere City Council and Auckland regional Council) as well as the 
Auckland regional transport Authority and Auckland regional transport Network Limited group. the assets and liabilities of these 
entities were transferred to the new governing structures established on 1 November 2010. the Auckland transition Agency was 
established prior to the reorganisation to oversee the transition.

   the new Auckland transport organisation combines the transport expertise and functions of the eight former local and regional 
councils and the Auckland regional transport Authority and Auckland regional transport Network Limited group.

   on 22 April 2010, the Accounting standards review Board approved an amendment to NZ IFrs 3 Business Combinations  
(NZ IFrs 3) applying to annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009. this amendment applies to public benefit entities, 
and results in NZ IFrs 3 not applying to a local authority reorganisation where the assets and liabilities are transferred to a local 
authority from another local authority at no cost, or for nominal consideration, pursuant to legislation, ministerial directive or other 
externally imposed requirement. As the reorganisation of the predecessor councils into the new Auckland Council group meets the 
requirements to apply this exemption, accounting for the reorganisation was not required to be in accordance with NZ IFrs 3.

   Alternative accounting options were therefore assessed and it was determined by the Auckland transition Agency that the most 
appropriate way to account for the reorganisation was to use the principles of merger accounting to treat Auckland transport as a 
new entity, rather than a continuation of the predecessor entities.

   under the merger accounting principles, the transport related assets and liabilities from the predecessor entities were able to be 
recognised in Auckland transport either at their current carrying values or at fair value. the Auckland transition Agency deemed that 
using current carrying values would have the result of showing a balance sheet that represents the total net assets of the predecessor 
entities prepared on a consistent basis which is familiar to users, enabling a more transparent and meaningful assessment of 
Auckland Council group compared to the predecessor entities.

29  eventS SubSequent to bALAnce dAte

  New Zealand Transport Agency vested assets

	 	 	A	Memorandum	of	Understanding	between	Auckland	Transport	and	New	Zealand	Transport	Agency	for	the	vesting	of	sections	
of state Highways was signed in June 2012. the vesting of these assets from NZtA to Auckland transport is likely to occur by 
30 september 2012. the value of these assets is estimated at between $500m and $550m. these assets will be valued to ensure 
consistency with Auckland transports valuation policies.

  City Rail Link

   In July 2012 Auckland transport announced the proposed land footprint for the City rail Link. the City rail Link will require the future 
purchase of surface property from 210 owners. underground portions of land from 70 interests, including 12 unit title developments 
with multiple owners, will also need to be purchased for the tunnels and stations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the yeAr ended 30 June 2012 continued

   Actual Budget 
   12 months to 12 months to 
   30 Jun 2012 30 Jun 2012 Variance

   $000 $000 $000

30  mAJor budget vAriAnceS

 explanations for major variations from Auckland transport’s budget are as follows:

 Statement of comprehensive income

 Income   755,196   775,643   (20,447)

 expenditure   865,622   792,779   (72,843)

 deficit before tax   (110,426)  (17,136)  (93,290)

 income

 Funding from Auckland Council   323,215   277,215   46,000 

 grant from Auckland Council for electric trains project $46m.

 Operational funding from NZ Transport Agency  190,723  206,057   (15,334)

  NZ transport Agency operational funding is reduced as a result of reduced operational spending.

 Capital funding from NZ Transport Agency   71,666  151,185   (79,519)

  reduced funding from NZtA is due to reduced expenditure on roading. Auckland transport reduced its new capital roading 
programme to reflect a more realistic programme of work as well as to recognise the NZtA funding available and the impact of the 
funding assistance agreement with NZtA.

 Vested asset income   24,037   –   24,037 

 Vested asset income of $24m not included in the budget.

 expenditure

 Finance costs   37,636   –   (37,636)

  unrealised loss on valuation of interest rate swaps $34m and interest expense for electric trains project $2.8m not included in  
the budget.

 Other expenses   522,408   501,072   (21,336)

  electric train procurement costs of $41.9m funded by a grant from Auckland Council offset by reduced operational spending.

 equity  13,490,320 13,303,390  186,930 

  equity is higher than budgeted mainly due to the increase in the asset revaluation reserve of $196.1m, transfer of assets from  
Auckland Council to Auckland transport of $117.5m, offset by variance in net deficit of $93.3m.

  the $117.5m unbudgeted equity was provided by Auckland Council to Auckland transport during the year in the form of various 
properties held by Auckland Council at 30 June 2011 which were identified as specifically for the purposes of future roading projects  
to be undertaken by Auckland transport on behalf of Auckland Council.
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   Actual Budget 
   12 months to 12 months to 
   30 Jun 2012 30 Jun 2012 Variance

   $000 $000 $000

30 mAJor budget vAriAnceS (CoNtINued)

 Statement of financial position

 Debtors and other receivables  244,302 169,046  75,256 

  grant income due from Auckland Council for electric train project $46m, and higher than budgeted receivables.

 Creditors and other payables  176,933 141,079 (35,854)

 Higher than budgeted level of accrued expenditure.

 Property, plant and equipment  13,569,719 13,248,225  321,494 

  Net gain on revaluation of assets at 30 June 2012 of $190m and transfer of assets from Auckland Council to Auckland transport $117.5m

 capital expenditure  591,696 546,200  45,496 

 Capital expenditure was in line with budgeted capital funding and investment from Auckland Council.

  Capital expenditure was above budget due to: additional loan-funded capital expenditure of $94.6m for the electric trains project; 
unbudgeted vested assets of $24m; less a reduction in the new capital roading programme of $67.4m. the reduction in roading 
reflected a more realistic programme of work as well as recognised the NZtA funding available and the impact of the funding  
assistance agreement with NZtA.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the yeAr ended 30 June 2012 continued
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Independent Auditor’s Report

to the reAderS oF AuckLAnd trAnSport’S FinAnciAL StAtementS And  
StAtement oF Service perFormAnce For the yeAr ended 30 June 2012

the Auditor general is the auditor of Auckland transport. the Auditor general has appointed me, david Walker, using the staff 
and resources of Audit New Zealand, to carry out the audit of the financial statements and statement of service performance of 
Auckland transport on her behalf. 

We have audited:

•	 	the	financial	statements	of	Auckland	Transport	on	pages	82	to	124,	that	comprise	the	statement	of	financial	position	as	at	 
30 June 2012, the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year 
ended on that date and the notes to the financial statements that include accounting policies and other explanatory information; and

•	 the	statement	of	service	performance	of	Auckland	Transport	on	pages	40	to	46,	54	to	59,	and	64	to	65.

opinion

In our opinion:

•	 the	financial	statements	of	Auckland	Transport	on	pages	82	to	124:
 – comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand; and
 – fairly reflect Auckland transport’s:

•	 financial	position	as	at	30	June	2012;	and

•	 financial	performance	and	cash	flows	for	the	year	ended	on	that	date;	and

•	 the	statement	of	service	performance	of	Auckland	Transport	on	pages	40	to	46,	54	to	59,	and	64	to	65:
 – complies with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand; and
 –  fairly reflects Auckland transport’s service performance achievements measured against the performance targets adopted for the 

year ended 30 June 2012.

our audit was completed on 20 August 2012. this is the date at which our opinion is expressed.

the basis of our opinion is explained below. In addition, we outline the responsibilities of the Board and our responsibilities, and we 
explain our independence.

bASiS oF opinion

We carried out our audit in accordance with the Auditor general’s Auditing standards, which incorporate the International standards on 
Auditing (New Zealand). those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and carry out our audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements and statement of service performance are free from material misstatement. 

Material	misstatements	are	differences	or	omissions	of	amounts	and	disclosures	that	would	affect	a	reader’s	overall	understanding	of	the	
financial statements and statement of service performance. If we had found material misstatements that were not corrected, we would 
have referred to them in our opinion.

An audit involves carrying out procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements and 
statement of service performance. the procedures selected depend on our judgement, including our assessment of risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements and statement of service performance, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the preparation of Auckland transport’s financial statements and statement of 
service performance that fairly reflect the matters to which they relate. We consider internal control in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Auckland transport’s 
internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report CONTINUED

An audit also involves evaluating:

•	 the	appropriateness	of	accounting	policies	used	and	whether	they	have	been	consistently	applied;

•	 the	reasonableness	of	the	significant	accounting	estimates	and	judgements	made	by	the	Board;

•	 the	adequacy	of	all	disclosures	in	the	financial	statements	and	statement	of	service	performance;	and

•	 the	overall	presentation	of	the	financial	statements	and	statement	of	service	performance.

We did not examine every transaction, nor do we guarantee complete accuracy of the financial statements and statement of service 
performance. We have obtained all the information and explanations we have required and we believe we have obtained sufficient and 
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

reSponSibiLitieS oF the boArd

the Board is responsible for preparing financial statements and a statement of service performance that:

•	 comply	with	generally	accepted	accounting	practice	in	New	Zealand;	

•	 fairly	reflect	Auckland	Transport’s	financial	position,	financial	performance	and	cash	flows;	and

•	 fairly	reflect	its	service	performance	achievements.

the Board is also responsible for such internal control as it determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements and 
a statement of service performance that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

the Board’s responsibilities arise from the Local government Act 2002.

reSponSibiLitieS oF the Auditor

We are responsible for expressing an independent opinion on the financial statements and statement of service performance and 
reporting that opinion to you based on our audit. our responsibility arises from section 15 of the public Audit Act 2001 and section 69 of 
the Local government Act 2002.

independence

When carrying out the audit we followed the independence requirements of the Auditor general, which incorporate the independence 
requirements of the New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants.

In	addition	to	the	audit	we	have	carried	out	assignments,	in	the	area	of	a	desktop	review	of	the	Draft	Asset	Management	Plans,	which	
are compatible with those independence requirements. other than the audit and these assignments, we have no relationship with or 
interests in the Auckland transport.

david Walker 
Audit New Zealand 
on behalf of the Auditor general 
Auckland, New Zealand
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AMETI		 Auckland-Manukau	Eastern	Transport	Initiative

At Auckland transport

b.line	 High-frequency	bus	services	along	Dominion	and	Mt	Eden	roads

CCo Council-controlled organisation

CrL City rail Link

Hop Auckland’s branded integrated ticket for public transport

HoV High-occupancy vehicle lanes

JtoC Joint transport operations Centre (at smales Farm)

kpI key performance indicator

Ltp Auckland Council’s Long-term plan

NorsgA Now known as the North West transformation Area, around Hobsonville

NZtA NZ transport Agency

poA programme of action, within the statement of Intent

ptNp public transport Network plan

PTOM	 Public	Transport	Operating	Model

rLtp regional Land transport programme

rWC 2011 rugby World Cup 2011

soI statement of Intent

tetratrap stormwater filtering device

tod transport-oriented development

travelWise Auckland’s school travel plan programme

Glossary

this document has been printed on environmentally responsible papers, manufactured using 
elemental Chlorine Free pulp from well managed forests. It is produced under the environmental 
management system Iso 14001, which aims to prevent pollution and achieve continual improvement. 
printed with vegetable based, mineral oil free inks.
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